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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the standalone financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the
“Company”) which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone statement of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit and
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsibie for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible
for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
CaratLane Trading Private Limited

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in the paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 01 April 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

the modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B".

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2024 on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the standalone financial
statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(i)

the Note 41(vii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 41(viii) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

e.

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report (Continued)
CaratLane Trading Private Limited

f. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of account, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility except in respect of a payroll software used for payroll records, operated by a third-
party software service provider whose independent service auditor's assurance report is not
available for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 March 2024 (the report is available for 1 April 2023
to 31 December 2023) with the Company. Accordingly, we are unable to comment whether audit
trail feature for the said payroll software was enabled and operated for the period 1 January 2024
to 31 March 2024, for the relevant transactions recorded in the software. For accounting softwares
for which audit trail feature is enabled, the audit trail facility has been operating throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under
Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

R

un Ramesh

Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24218495BKF TKK9062
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March

2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(i) (b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(ii) (a)

(i)

(a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this programme, certain
property, plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Company does not have any immovable property (other than immovable properties where
the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee). Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, has been physically
verified by the management during the year.For stocks lying with third parties at the year-end,
written confirmations have been obtained and for goods-in-transit subsequent evidence of
receipts has been linked with inventory records. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification
is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class of inventory

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, the Company has not made investments and not provided any
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to
companies, firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company
has granted unsecured loan to other parties during the year, in respect of which requisite
information is as below. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms and limited liability partnership during the year.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or
stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity as below:
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

(e)

(iv)

Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount during the year

~  Subsidiary Rs. 2,817 lakhs

— other parties Rs. 215.94 lakhs

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date

— Subsidiary Rs.4,861 lakhs

— other parties Rs. 127.54 lakhs

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans during the year
are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not made
investments and not provided any guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature
of loan during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given. Further, the Company has not given any advances in the nature of loans to any
party during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion following instances of loans falling due during the
year were renewed or extended or settled by fresh loans:

Name of the parties Aggregate overdue Percentage of the
amount settled by aggregate to the total
extension loans or advances in the
nature of loans granted
during the year
StudioC Inc. (Wholly owned | Rs. 250 lakhs 8.87%
subsidiary)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of
repayment.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") In
respect of the loans given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section 186 of the
Act have been complied with. Further, according to the information and exp la nations given to
us and on the basis of examination of our records of the Company, the Company has not made
investments and not provided any guarantee or security specified under Section 186 of the Act.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the products
manufactured by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) () The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues have been generally regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or
other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

Name of the statute/ | Amount (Rs. in Period to which the Forum where
Nature of Due lakhs) amount relates dispute is
pending
Goods and Service Tax 18.27 | 2018-19 Appellate Authority
Goods and Service Tax 15.52 | 2017-18 Appellate Authority
Goods and Service Tax 2.10 | 2017-18 Joint
Commissioner,
West Bengal
(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

®

(xi) (a)

(b)

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act).

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable,
and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

(b)

(©

()

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanation given by the management, the group has five CICs
which are registered with Reserve Bank of India and two CIC which is not required to be
registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than
ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of ongoing projects,
to a Special Account till the date of our report. However, the time period for such transfer i.e.
thirty days from the end of the financial year as permitted under the sub-section (6) of Section
135 of the Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

W el

Arjun Ramesh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24218495BKFTKK9062
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone financial-
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone

financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act
N

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of CaratLane Trading
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financia! Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note™).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ail material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the desigh and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

H-
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the standalone financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

QA

rjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24218495BKF TKK9062
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet
(Al amounnts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note oLl LOED
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
|Propenty, plant and equipment 5(i) 8,721 7,921
Capital work-in-progress * 5(ii) 68 0
Right-of-use assels 6 24,611 20,039
Intangible assets 5(ii} 3,180 2,755
Intangible assets under development S(iv) 244 77
Financial assets
i Invesiments (i) 109 109
ii. Loans receivable (i) 4,861 1,998
iii. Other financial assels T(iii) 9,700 6,614
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 3,292 1,403
Other lax assets (net) 8 1,017 215
Other non-current assets 9 6,583 3,136
‘Total non current assets 61,386 44.267
Current assets
Inventories 10 102,760 89,372
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 11(i) 2,169 3,605
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 11(ii) 2,111 506
iii. Other bank balance 11 504 178
iv. Loan receivables 11(iv) 128 523
v. Other financial assels 11(v) 5,902 4,201
Other current assets 12 13.908 12.873
Tatal current assets 127,482 111,258
Asscls held for sale 38 1,806 -
Total assets 191,674 155,525
i
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capilal 13 667 667
Share application money - 1
Other equity 14 14.512 21,402
Total equity 15,179 22,070
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
i, Borrowings 15(i) 13,036 -
iia. Lease liabilities 15(i) 30,791 23,025
ili. Other financial liabilities 15(iii) 840 362
(hiher non-current liabilities 16 145 87
Provisions 17 1,137 693
‘Totat Non current liabilities 45.949 24,167
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 18(i) 46,190 56,711
ii. Gold on loan 18(ii) 40,220 20,931
iiia. Lease liabilities 18(iti) 4457 3317
iv. Trade payables 18(iv)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3,414 3,466
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 22,419 15,840
and small enterprises
v. Other financial liabilities 18(v) 2,842 1,664
(Other current liabilities 19 9,844 6,601
Provisions 20 1,040 758
Total current liabilities 130,426 109,288
Liabilitics held for sale 38 120 -
Total liabilities 191,674 155,525
*Represents amounts less than Ry.50,000
Material accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements
s per our report of even dale attached
fiv BS R & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Firm registratign number: 101248W/ W-100022 (CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)
Arjun Ran Avnish Anand
Pariner Managing Director
Memibiership ¥, 218495 DIN: 10359814
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 April 2024 ate: 25 April 2024 Date: 25 April 2024
Manoj Bhanawat ‘
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 April 2024




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

As per our report of even date attached

for BS R& Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

K.

Arjun Ram
Partner
Membership No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru e
Date: 25 April 2024 R T
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I ﬂ;noj Bhanawat

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: US2393TN2007PTC064830)

Avnish Anand
Managing Director
DIN: 10359814

Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024

GPoecnb®

N

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 April 2024

\shok Kumar Sonthalia
irector

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024

Particul:
arficulars INgte 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations 21 305,815 215,509
Other income 22 3,179 2,177
Total income (1) 308,994 217,686
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 (a) 201,345 160,642
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 (b) 24,247 15,784
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 23 (18,135) (35,930)
work-in-progress )
Employee benefits expense 24 17,013 13,532
Finance costs 25 8,110 4,658
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 8,243 4473
Other expenses 27 54.564 40,564
Total expenses (I1) 295,387 203,723
Profit before tax (II1) [(F)-(IT)] 13,607 13,963
Tax expense (IV)
- Current tax - -
- Deferred tax 8 3,530 3.723
Profit for the year (A) [(1I1)-(1V)] 10,077 10,240
Other comprehensive income
Jtems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement
of profit and loss:
- Remeasurements of employee defined benefit plans (376) (107)
- Income-tax on above 95 27
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (B) (281) (80)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 9,796 10,160
Earnings per equity share (par value of Rs. 2 per share)
Basic eamnings per share (Rs.) 28 30.22 30.75
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 28 29.93 30.56
Material accounting policies 3




Caratl.ane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of changes in equity
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance at the [ April 2022 665
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2
As at 31 March 2023 667
Changes in equity share capital during the year * 0
As at 31 March 2024 667

ﬂ

*Represents amounts less than Rs.50,000

B. Other equity

Reserves and surplus
Other
) comprehensive income Total
Particulars Securities premium Stock options Retained (Re-measurement of
outstanding account earnings defined benefit
obligation)
Balance at the 1 April 2022 40,978 851 (30,518) (244) 11,067
Premium on shares issued during the year 163 (100) - - 63
Profit for the year - - 10,240 - 10,240
Employee stock option expense - 113 - - 113
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - - - (80) (80)
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,240 (80) 10,160
Balance as at 31 March 2023 41,141 864 (20,277) (326) 21,402
Balance as at 1 April 2023 41,141 864 (20,277) (326) 21,402
IPremium on shares issued during the year 1 - = 2 1
Profit for the year - - 10,077 - 10,077
Modification of ESOP Plan (Refer Note 13) - (857) (15,830) - (16,687)
Share Options exercised 7 (7 - - -
Employee stock option expense - - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (nef of taxes) - - - {281) (281)
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,077 (281) 9,796
Balance as at 31 March 2024 41,149 - (26,030) (607) 14,512
Material accounting policies 3

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

tr BS R & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
(hurlered Accountants CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
i number; 101248W/ W-100022 (CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

Amihy drand]

Avnish Anand

Firm registrati

K.

Arjun Rames|

shok ar Sonthalia

Partmer Managing Director ireetor
Membership NiY 218495 DIN: 10359814 [HIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru Place: Mumbai Place: Bengaluru
Date; 25 April 2024 Date: 25 April 2024 Date: 25 April 2024

—
(/’ﬁnoj Bhanawat

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax 13,607 13,963
Adjustments for.
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8,243 4,473
Interest income (295) (82)
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (692) (553)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (181) (186)
Termination gain (388) -
Gain on sale of investment (net) (53) 3)
Finance cost 8,110 4,658
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (100) (38)
Property, plant and equipment wrtitten off 24 -
Intangible assets wrtitten off 3 17
Employee share based payment 18 113
Operating profit before working capital changes 28,296 22,362
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(increase)/ decrease in inventories (14,860) (35,992)
(mcrease)/ decrease in trade receivables 1,338 (1,554)
{increase) decrease in loans receivable, other financial asset and other assets (6.285) (9,737)
increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 742 568
increase/ (decrease) in provisions 350 318
increase/ (decrease) in gold on loan and trade payable 25,936 (302)
increase/ (decrease) in other habilities 3223 2,483
Cash genereated from/(used in) operating activities before taxes 38,740 (21.854)
Income taxes paid (Net of refunds) (802) (100)
Net cash inflow from/(used in) operating activities (A) 37,938 (21,954)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets (6,502) (8,772)
under development
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1.017 24|
Loan given during the year to subsidiary (2,863) (1,771}
Purchase/sale of mutual fund investments, net 53 3
Sccurity deposits placed during the year (326) -
Interes! received 1,168 807
|ease payments received from sub-leases 1.649 1.086
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (5.804) (8,4006)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards lease liabilities (principal) (4,936) (3,444)
Payment towards lease liabilities (interest) (2,998} (1.498)
Proceeds from long term borrowings 17,317 -
Repayment of long term borrowings . (1,024) (637)
(Repayment of)/ proceeds trom short term borrowings, net (13,778) 38,996
Interest paid (5,028) (3,022)
Cash settled options (Refer note 13) (net of taxes) (20,083) -
Proceed from issue of equity shares | 65
Net cash (used in)/from generated from financing activities (C) (30,529) 30,440
Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,605 80
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year { Refer note T1(ii) 506 426
2,111 506

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 11{ii))




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Standalone statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Borrowings

Opening balance 56,711 18,372
Repayment of borrowings (577,801) (366,645)
Proceeds from borrowings 580,316 404,984
Closing balance 59,226 56,711
Reconciliation of Lease liability

Opening balance 26,342 12,142
Payments made during the year (7,934) (4,942)
Non-cash changes 16,840 19.142
Closing balance 35,248 26,342

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

K.

Arjun Ra
Partner
Membership No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024

iy and]

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

Avnish Anand
Managing Director
DIN: 10359814
Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024

A
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024

Ashok Kumar Sonthalia

Director

DIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 April 2024




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Material accounting policies and notes to the st

dal

financial stat ts

I BACKGROUND
CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the Company) is domiciled and incorporated in India under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company is engaged in activities of
Manufacturing and trading of jewellery. The repistered office address of the Company is 27, Anna Salai, Pathari Road Thousand Lights, Chennai TN 600006.

The Board of Directors approved the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 and authorised for issue on 25 April 2024.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

(i) Statement of compliance

The standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies

(Indian Ac ing Standards) A tment Rules, 2016 read with Seetion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) and other relevant provision of the act under going concern
asssumption using the historical cost convention on an acerual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values notified under the Act & Rules
preseribed th der, (together hereinafter referred to as *Standalone I il S " or'fi al ts”)

(ii) Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following ilems:
a. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

b. Share based payments that are measured at fair value

¢. Net defined benefit liability that are measured at fair value of present value of defined benefit oblirations

d. Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair value as per INDAS 116

e. Security deposits are measured at fair value as per INDAS 109

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(iii} Use of estimates, ptions and judg t

The preparation of falone financial in conformity with Ind AS requi o 10 make judg esti and ptions that affect the application of
accounting policies on the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and exp and discl of i linbititics. Such estimates; assumptions and judgement are
based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements, The actual result may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumplions are reviewed on a perindic basis, Revisions fo ing esti are recognized prospectively,

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements is included
in the following notes:

- Note 30 — Leases — whether an arrangement contains a lease

_ Note 30 — Lease classification (including the expected general inflation rates)

- Note 21 - Revenue Recognition

"-Note 5(iv)- Intangible assets under development

Assuinptions and estimation

Information about assumptions and cstimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a waterial adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2024 is included in the
following notes:

- Note 5 (i) — Useful life of the Property, plant and equipment;

- Note 5 (ii) — Useful life of the Intangible assets;

- Note 35 — Contingent Habilities and commitments;

- Notes 31 — Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Note 30 - Leases - Lease tenn and incremental borrowing rate

- Note 36 — Fair value measurcment of financial instruments

- Note 21 - Revenue recognition

- Note 20 (a) - Provision for warranty

- Note 33 - Right to recover retumed goods and Liability for sales return

-Nete 11(b)- Expected credit loss

-Note 8- Deferred tax- recognition and valuation

- Note 19 - Provision for Xclusive points

(iv) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the dalome fi il 1ts of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates (i.e. the
“functional currency”). The fal fi inl st s are | d in Indian Rupee ("Rs." or "INR"), which is the Company's functional and presentation cuirency and is
rounded-off to the nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated

(v) Measurement of fir values

Certain nccounting policies and disclosures of the Company require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and the valuation team regularly reviews significant unobscrvable inputs and
valuation adjustments,

Fair salues are categorised into different levels in a fair value hicrarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in nctive markets for identical asscts or liabilities.

- Level 2. inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | thatare observable for the asset of liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the lair value of an asset or a linbility, the Campany uses observable market data as far as possible.
I€ the inputs used to measure the fair value of an assel or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fir value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the eiitire measurement.

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 36 - financial instruinents.

(vi) Current and Non Current classification

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet. Balances that are realisabe/ payable within a period 12 months are
considered as current and beyond 12 months is considered as non-current




ICaratLane Trading Private Limited
Material accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial statements

3  MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Standalone Financial Statements unless otherwise indicated.

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those goods or services.

Sale of products :
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control is transferred to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments made to customers, other
similar charges, as specified in the contract with the customer. Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to governmental
authorilies. Invoices are usually payable within 120-180 days, except for cash and carry business.

For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognized to the extent that is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur,

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognized is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on the historical data. In these circumstances, a refund liability and a right to
recover returned goods assets are recognized. The right to recover returned goods asset is measured after reducing the average gross margin from the estimated refund liability. The
refund liability is included in other current liability (note 19) and right to recover retumed goods is included in other current assets (note 12). The Company reviews its estimate of
expected returns at each reporting date and updates the amounts of the assets and liability accordingly.

Advances feceived for services are reported as liabilities until all conditions for revenue recognition are met.
The Company allocates a portion of the consideration received to ‘Xclusive points’. This allocation of the material right to the customer is based on the historical data for redemption

of these Xclusive points, The amount allocated to the xclsuive points is deferred and is recognized as revenue when xclusive points are redeemed or the likelihood of the customer
redeeming the xclusive points become remote. The deferred revenue is included in other current liabilities.

Use of significant ji J; S in revenuie recognition.

» The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods to a customer. The Company assesses the goods promised in a contract and identifies
distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the cuslomer to
benefit independently from such deliverables.

- Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration
with elements such as volume discounts, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct good from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period

+ The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a performance obligation, The Company allocates the transaction price lo each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service promised in the contract. Where standalone selling price is not observable, the Company
uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation,

Refer Note - 21 Revenue from operations

Interest income is recognized as it accrues in the standalone statement of profit and loss using effective interest rate method.
Commission income is generally recognized when the related sale is executed as per the terms of the agreement,

The Company has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 21 are disaggregated iuto categories that depict how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows are affected by economic factors.

i (a) Other income

Franchisee Signing Fees ‘Franchisee signining fees is recognised based on the franchisee stores opened during the year which varies based on the location. It excludes taxes remitted
to the goverment which are receovered from the Franchisee's. (Note 22)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
The cost of any item of PPE shall be recognised as an asset if an only if it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the

item can be measured reliably
[tems of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on
borrowings attributable to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits from such
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital advances under non-current assets,

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the standalone statement of profit or loss. Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of
assets that are not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The Company identifies and determines cost of ¢ach component/ part of property, plant and equipiment separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost
of the property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful

life of the asset or the lease period whichever is less,

An item of propenty, plant and equif and any significant part initially recognised is derccognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Guins or losses arising from de-recognition of Property, plant and cquipment and intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
camying amount of Property, plant and equipment and are recop) ized in the dal t t of profit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment is derccopnized.

(e
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Coraclzne Trading Private Limited
Material accounting policies and notes to the standalone financial stetements

(ii) Property, plant and equipment (vontinued)

Depreciation methods, estimaied usefil life and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line methnd to allocate their cost over the useful lives of assets which is as [o!lows:

Asset category Management estiinate of Useful life as per
useful life schedule Il
Furniture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Computer equipment 3 vears 3 years
Computer server 6 years 6 years
Office equipments 5 years 5 years
Jewellery Machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles 5 years 8 years
Mock jewellery 1 year 1 year
Leaseliold improvements - Stores 4 years Lease period
Leasehold improvements - Other than stores 8 years or Ieasi: IP;:M whichever Lease petiod

Depreciation for assers purchased / sold during the period is proportionally charged.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects (0 use these assets, Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

(iii) Intangible assets
(a) Imternally generaied : Research and development

Expenditure on research actiyities is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and hes sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the assel. Otherwise,
it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Amoruzation

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives usfng the straight- line method, and is included
in depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss. '

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Uselul life
Computer software 3 years
Caratlane porial 3 vears

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of cach financial year and adjusted prospectively, il appropriate.

(iv) Impairment

(a) Financial assets

The Company gnizes loss allo using the expected credit loss (ECL} model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss.
Expected credit loss is the difference between (he contractual cash flows and the cash flows Laat the entity expecis to receive, discounted using the effective interest 1ate. Loss
allowance for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amaunt ¢qual to the 12-month
ECL. unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured-at lifetime ECL, as required. The amount of expected credit
losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be r=cognized is recognized as ar: impairment gain or loss in the

Statement of Profit and Loss

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis. based on the Company’s
listorical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when: .

«the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
sthe financial asset is more than 90 days past due

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental pnice on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have pecurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impatred includes the following observable data:

i, sigificant financial difficulty of the debtor;

ii. a breach of contract such as default or being more than 90 days past due;

iiii. it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganistaion; o1
iv, the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficultics,

(b) Non-financia! assets

Intangible assets, [ ible asset under development and property, plant and equipment

At each reportng date, the Company reviews the carying amoun| of its Non finaueial assets to determine whether there is any indicalion of impairment Intangible assets,Infangible
asset under development and praperty, plant and cquipment are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable, For the purpase of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost fo sell and the value-in -use) is determined on an individual
assel basis unless the assel does not generate cash fMows that are fargely independent of those from other assets. Value in use is based on estimated future cash Mows. discounted 1o
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments-of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the asset or CGU. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss is measurcd by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the cstimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss is veversed in the statement of
profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The cartying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairmeit Toss been

recognized for the asset in prior years,
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(v) Leases

Company as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

a. the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

b. the Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use; and

¢. the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company aliocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone prices of the lease components and the appregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

The Company tecopnises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset
measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is Jocated.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Company. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as
the discount rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. Incremental borrowing rate used for discounting has been determined by taking the interest rates obtained from financial
institutions for borrowing the similar value of right of use assets for similar tenure. The rates will be reassessed on a yearly basis at the beginning of each accounting period to reflect
changes in financial conditions. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

When the Company acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

The Company recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts
for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not
wilh reference fo the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short -term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an
operating lease.

If an arrangement contains a lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract,

(vi) Non-current assets or assets and liabilities held for sale :

Non-current assets, or assets and liabilities held for sale, are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through
continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying value and fair value less costs Lo sell

Once classified as held for sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in balance sheet. The liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet

(vii) Inventories

Inventoties [other than quantities of gold for which the price is yet to be determined with the suppliers (Unfixed Gold)] are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The
cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw materials are valued at weighted average except solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchase

(i) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are valued at weighted average cost of production.

(iii) Traded goods are valued at weighted average / cost of purchase.

(iv) Gold is valued on first-in-first-out basis.

(v) Gold hedged through gold on loan and futures contract are revalued at fair value

Cost comprises all costs of purchase including duties and taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the Company), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable
to acquisition. Work-in-progress and finished goods include appropriate proportion of overheads.

Unfixed gold is initially valued at the provisional gold price prevailing on the date of receipt of gold and revalued at the gold price prevailing at the end of each reporting period.

Net realizable value represent the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale

(viii) Foreign currency transactions and balances
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the year

Monetary assets and liabililies denominated in foreign currencies as at the standalone balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rates on that date. The resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss,

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated at an exchange rate that approximates the rates
prevalent on the date of the transaction
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(ix) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are recognized in standalone
statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the
taxable income for that year. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The Company offsels
current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the balance shect approach. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income tax arises from the initial
recognilion of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, (o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets are recognized for carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that taxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax asscts and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and
liabilities is recognized as an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date.

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at cach reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred fax
asset to be recovered,

The measurement of deferred tax refects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting date to tecover or settle the camying
amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same tax authority,

(xi) Employee benefits
i) Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benetits. Benefits such as salaries, short-term compensated absences
and incentives etc., are recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee renders the related service.

i) Defined contribution plan

All eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Company make monthly contribution to the {und, which is
equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's basic salary and inciuding other fixed component not linked to the performance of employees. The Company has no further
obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions

iii) Post employment benefits

The Company provides. for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all eligible employees. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on
actuarial valuation carried a1 the year-end using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employce benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market vields on Government securities as at the bilance sheet date having maturity
periods approximating the term of the related obligation. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheel as an assel or liability. Gains and
losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and
losses on defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not to be subsequently reclassified to standalone statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule LI,
the Company transfers it immediately to retained eamings

The plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on the salary of the respective employce and the years of
employment with the Company. The gratuity liability is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

iv) Compensated absences
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an
actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

(xii) Employee stock option expense
The Company measures compensation cost relating to share-based payments using the fair valuation method in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. Compensation
expense is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was

in-substance. multiple awards,

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. The expected term of an option is
estimated based on the vesting tenm and contractual life of the option. Expected volatility during the expected term of the option is based on the historical volatility of similar
companies. Risk free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the time of the granL.

The cost of equity settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase in share options outstanding account in equity, over Lhe period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting pertoc has expired and the company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statcment expense or credit for a period
represents the .novement in cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effect of
outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted nps per share

On 13 December 2023, the Boa:d of Directors had approved the conversion of the exisitng ESOP plan to cash setiled ‘plan‘ and approved cash settlement of outstanding Vested and
unexercised Opiions to all eligible employees/ ex- employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options. The difference between the fait value of aptions as on grant
date and fair value of options as on date of conveision is debited to 'other equity".

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of options which are settled in cash, is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding liabilities. over
the period during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to payment. The liability is measured at each reporting date and at settlement date based on the fair value of
options. Any change in the liability are recognized in profit or loss.
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(xiii) Financial instruments
Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or liabililies, as appropriate on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of financial assets.

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortized cost

(i#) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCL)

(iii) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

(i) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Yinancial assels at fair value through comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ate solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss .

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

A financial liabilities which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss .

Derecognition

Fnancial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contrastual cash flows
in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Campany enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Fmancial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractunl obligations are discharged or cancelled. or expire. The Company also derecog izesa li 1 liability when its
terms are modificd and the cash flows under the modified terms are substantinlly different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized a1 fair value,
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial linbility extinguished and a new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the fal of profit
and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the standalone balance shect when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
nght to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(xiv) Derivative financial instruments

a. Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair villue of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Company revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging
instrument or hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting.

The Company applies fair value hedge for the gold purchased whose price is to be fixed in future. Therefore, there will be no impact of the fluctuation in the price of the gold on the
Company's profit for the period.The Company has designated the trade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold’) as a fair value hedge to the
corresponding gold inventory purchased on loan,

b. Cash flow hedge
The Company uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuntions relating to certain highly probable forecasted transactions. The company has
designated derivative financial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as ‘cash flow” hedges refating to highly probable forecasted transactions.

The use of derivative financial instruments is governed by the Company’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such
instruments

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives that are designated and
¢ffective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised in Other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedge reserve and the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Hedyge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. For forecasted i any lative gain or Toss on the
hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retuinied uniil the fi r ion oceurs upon which itis ised in the standal of profit and loss. If a hedged
transaction is no londer expected to oceur, the net cumulative gain or loss ac lated in hedging reserve is nised i Jintely to the of profit and loss.

The Company has designated derivative fi | instruments tnken for gold price Muctuations as *cash flow” hedges relating to highly probable forecasted transactions,
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{xv) Provisions ana coatingent liabilities

a. General

Provisions are recognized when the Coimpany has a present obligation (legal or construcive) as a result of a past event, iv is probable (hat an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate san be made of the amount of the cbligatior. When the Company expecls some or ali ¢f a provision to be
reimbursed, the expense 1elating to a provisicn is presented in the standalone statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. if the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriatc. the risks speeific to the liabikity. When discounting is used, the increase in the previsien due to
the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Product warranty costs are determined based on past experience and provided for in the year of sale

h. Contingent liahilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a
possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

c. Onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contracts i .¢, contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an
obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation.

(xvi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balances with banks, The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents.

(xvii) Standalone cash flow statement

Cash flows arz reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature. any deferals or accnuais of past or future
operaling cash receipts or payments and item of fncome or expenses associated” with investing or financing cash flows, The cask flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

(xviii) Borrowing Cost . . ¢
Borrewing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. The borrcwing cost includes intergst expense accrued on gold on loan tahen from banks.
Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of tithe tc get ready for their intended use are capitalized as part of

the cost of asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred . ‘ ) .- .

(xix) Earning per share .

Basic eaming per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, Diluted loss per share is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic loss per share and also the weighted average number of
equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity
and dilutive equivalent shares outstanding during the year, using the treasury stock metnod for options, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted potential equity
shares are adjusted for (he proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the averape market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless 1ssued at a later date

(xx) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM'). The Board of Directors of the Company
assesses the financial performance and position of the Company. The Managing Director and Chief executive officer has been identified as the CODM

The Company operates in one segment only i.e. Jewellery. The CODM evaluates the Company's performance based on the revenue and operating income from the sale of Jewellery
Accordingly, no additional segment disclosure has been made for the business segment.

In terms of geographical segment, since the Company operates only in India, there is only one geographical segment, i.e. India. Accordingly, no additional disclosure has been made
for geographical segiment infonmation.

4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to
time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standirds applicable to the Company.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amowns in INR lakhs, unless stleniise stated)
5(i) Property, plant and equipment*
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Carrying amount (net)
Baxtictirs Asat Asset held for sal Asat Asset held for sale As at 31 March
al ssel or sale sa et held for ar
. 5 5 . ) 3
1 April 2023 Additions Disposals/Write ofT (Refer Note 38) As at 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 Charge for the year Disposals/Write ofl (Refer Note 38) 2024 As at 31 March 2024
Tangible assets
Furniture and fitlings 1,788 652 357 22 2,061 412 203 61 4 550 1,511
Leasehold improvements 4,707 1,546 437 5 5,811 1,280 938 110 2,106 3,705
Computer equipment 1,754 308 19 63 1,980 906 483 11 35 1,343 637
Computer server 38 - - - 38 21 2 - - 23 15
Mock jewellery 250 - - - 250 250 - - - 250 -
Office equipment 2,107 1,169 304 112 2,860 720 481 52 45 1,104 1,756
Jewellery machine 1,062 416 67 51 1,360 197 88 6 15 264 1,096
Vehicles 3 - - - 3 2 - - - 2 |
Total (A) 11,709 4,091 1,184 253 14.363 3,788 2,195 240 101 5,642 8.721
Gross carrying amount A d depreciation Carrying amount (net)
Particulars As at As at Charge for the
o Di B o . 5
1 April 2022 Additions isposals/Write off As at 31 March 2023 1 April 2022 - Disposals/Write ofT As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Tangible assets
Furniture and fittings 919 929 60 1,788 306 115 9 412 1,376
Leasehold improvements 1,629 3,193 115 4,707 909 422 Sl 1,280 3,427
Computer equipment 1,030 724 - 1,754 569 336 - 906 849
Computer server 38 - - 38 19 2 - 21 16
Mock jewellery 250 - - 250 250 - - 250 -
Office equipment 1,128 1,047 68 2,107 497 238 15 720 1,387
Jewellery machine 692 417 47 1,062 141 62 6 197 865
| Vehicles 3 - - 3 2 - - 2 1
Total (A) 5,689 6,310 290 11,709 2,694 1,175 31 3,788 7,921
*Refer Note 18(i) for details of security
5(ii) Intangible assets
Gross carrying amount Accumulated amortization Carrying amount (net)
Particulars As at Asset held f ! As at Asset held fc I As at 31 March
sa sset held for sale s a sset held for sale sa arc|
iti i 1 i 3 i ite off
1 April 2023 Additions Disposals/Write ofTl (Refer Note 38) As at 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 Charge for the year Disposals/Write o! (Refer Note 38) 2024 As at 31 March 2024
Intangible assets
Computer software 4,877 1,857 - B8 6,646 2,122 1,418 - 74 3,466 3,180
Website 239 - - = 239 239 - - - 239 -
Tatal 5.116 1,857 - 88 6,885 2,361 1,418 - 74 3.705 3,180




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the dalone financial st
(oAl ety i INK dsikfis, unless otherwise stiled)

for the year ended 31 March 2024

5(ii) lntangible assets (Contd)

= Gross carrying amount Act 1 amorti Carrying amount (net)
Particulars As at As at Charge for the
s Di E h " .
1 April 2022 Additions isposals/Write off As at 31 March 2023 1 April 2022 T Disposals/Write off As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Intangible assets
Computer software 2,636 2,368 127 4877 1,488 750 116 2,122 2,755
Caratlane pottal 239 - - 239 239 - - 239 -
Total 2,875 2.368 127 5,116 1,727 750 116 - 2.361 2,755
rS[iii,'p Capital Work in Progress
(A) Movement of Capital Work in Progress
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars As.at Additions Capitalisation during As at 31 March 2024
1 April 2023 the vear
Capital Work in Progress * 0 192 124 68
Total 0 192 124 68
As at 31 March 2023
. As at s Capitalisation during
Particul;
articulars 1 April 2022 Additions the vear As at 31 March 2023
Capital Work in Prouress * 2 - 2 0
Toral 2 - 2 0
* Represents amount less than Rs 50,000
(B) Ageing of Capital Work in Progress
As at 31 March 2024
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress 68 - - - 68
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 68 - - = 68
As at 31 March 2023
- —W -
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than [ vear 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years More than 3 years
(a) Projects in progress* 0 - - - 0
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0 - - - Q
* Represents amount less than Rs. 50,000
s
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standal fi ial st ts for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amounts in INK lakhs, undess otherwise stated)

5(iv) Movement and Ageing of Intangible assets under development:
(A) Movement of Intangible assets under development :

As at 31 March 2024

: As at . Capitalisation during
Particul. R
articulars 1 April 2023 Additions the vear eversals As at 31 March 2024
I le assets under development 77 2.007 1,837 3 244
77 2.007 1,837 3 244

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars As'al Additions Disposals Reversals As at 31 March 2023

1 April 2022
Intangible assets under development 479 1,823 2,225 = 77
Total 479 1,823 2,225 - 77
(B) Ageing of Intangible assels under development :
Asat 31 March 2024
i o = >
Particulars Amount i assets under development for a period Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

() Projects in progress 244 - - - 244
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - = -
Total 244 . = - 244
As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Amount in assets under development for a period Total

Less than | year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(a) Projects in progress It 5 - - 77
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 71 5 - - 17

Noles :
1. There are no projects as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 where the project limelines are overdue
2. There are no projects as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 where the cost exceeded the original plan approved by the Board of Directors
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§ Right ol use assels*

Particular Asat Asal
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Asat Apnil | 24,896 121
Add - Additions 12,396 10,162
Less : Modulications / Terminations 4634 1387
As at March 31 32,658 TIHT6
Accumulated amortisation
Asat Apnl 1 4857 3,705
Add : Amortsulion expense 4,630 2,557
Less : Modifications / Tenmunations L0 1 A0S
As at March 31 [N FLG
Net currying value 2611 20035
*Also Refer Note 30
7 Financial assels
i) Imesimenty
Asal Aval
Prfioutisy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
L in equity jumstd
Investment in subsidiary (af cost unless stated otherwise))
150 shares (Previaus year: 150 sharcs) futly paid equity shares ol'S 1,000 coch in StudioC Inc . USA b 4
109 [T
L
Aggregate book valiie of unquoted insestinents 109 o]
(ii) Louns receivable
Particul Aval Asal
fewlars 31 March 2024 31 March 2020
Untsecured, cnsidered goold
Loan to StudioC Ine. (Refer note 29) 456] 1.99%,
1,00

( Note : The loan receivable [rom StudioC Inc was carlicr receivable in 2-3 years (rom the date of cach dishursemen, which have been extended in current vear (o 5 years from the dute of each disbursement
(jii) Other finunclal nssets
Ayal Asat
( Famkicinct 31 March 2124 31 March 2023
Erecurad, comvidenad pond
Sccunty deposils 2,150 1,906
B L receivables (Refer note 103 7462 4,698
( Other deposits ux 10
9,700 6,614

~ o
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Caratlanc Trading Private Limited
Misten to the standalone financlul statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
1! picinnis st EN® fasbhyr, anrders atherise stated)

8 Income tax

) The followlng I3 the analysis of deferred tax assets/(linbilili

Asut Asml
Bt 31 Mareh 2024 31 Murch 2023
Dieferrad tox ascts 3192 1403
3,292 Jd
. Recognised in the
Asat Recognised In other Reeopnived in Asat
Furticular 1 Aprit 2023 comprohensive income *12/¢m ™ of PFOY B ained eaming. 31 March 2024
Deferred tax avuets
Provision for doubtful trade reccivables 17 . 13) 3 4
Property, plant and eyuipment 145 - 94 . 239
LEmployee henelils 345 95 63 - 503
Lease liabilities (net of Right-of-use assets) 240 . 271 - sil
Camrvlorward of Losses and unahsorbed depreciation 5719 . 768 - 1347
Provision for Property, plant and equipment 29 - - - 29
Provision for warranty 47 - 17 - 64
I:SOP Liubilites . - 4,822 5325 503
Olbers - . [ . (3]
L0 EE 3530 5338 R
Recognired In the i .
Asat Recognised In other Recognised in Asat
Purfiolary 1 April 2022 “"""'“"“'I:L'""“' and cumprf;:umivc eome rotuined carming 31 March 2023
Deferred tay aets
Provision for doubiful trade recenables n 6 - . 17
Property, plant ond equipment 218 an - - 145
Employee benefits 232 86 3 . 345
Lease linbilities (net of Righl-of-use asscts} 156 A4 - . 240
Carmvlorward of 1osses and unsbsorbed depreciation 4,480 (3.901) - . 579
Provision (or Property, plant and equipment . 29 - - 29
Provision for warranty . 7 a . 47
5,097 {3,723} s . 1403
h) Amounts recognised in statement of profit snd loss
Particular For the year ended For the year cnded
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Incame 14y expeases
Current tax . .
Delerred tax 3530 3,723
Income Lo included in other comprehensive income on:
- Remeasurement of employee defined benefit plans 174 [E4i]
Tax expense for the year I35 EYTa
6] The reconciliation between the provision of incame tax and smounts computed by upplying the Indian statutory income tax rate lo profil before laxes
For the vear ended Far the year cndud
Eurticaiars 31 March 2014 31 March 1023
Trudit before tax 107 13063
Fiactal eome s rate in Tndu 25.17% 2517%
Compuled expecied tax expense 3425 3514
Effeel af:
[iflzet of utthsation of eamyforward losses and unabsarbed depreciation against current years profit 105 209
Income tux expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 3.5 312
Nite 2 Frien the Asscoment Year 2022:33 anvards relevant tar the. previosis yeat 203122, the Compuany has elected 10 guerease the oplion. permitted under section 115BAA(L) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 afler satisfying the

conbims srmisined i scetion 115HAALZ) ax btreduced by the Tieatien Laws (Amidient) Odinanes, 2019. Accordingly, the Company has nol recognized Minimum nlemutive Tox (MAT) under the provision for income tax for
the veat encdedd 3 March 2024 urid conputed defirmed tax based v the rate pesseribed in the said soctio peismarily for the earied forard borincn

4} The follow Ing table provides the details of Income tx ussets and income tax lishilitics us of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:
- Asat Asat
i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income lox ass: 1.017 215
Current tox habil - .
Net current income tax assets at the end of the year 1017 11
For the year cnded For the year ended
L y
Prctieiten 31 Mureh 2024 31 March 2023
Nel current income lax assets at the beginning of the year 215 s
Income tax paid 874 127
Refund received duning the year * 72 21
Nel current income lax assets al the end of the year 1017 S
* During the year ended 31 March 2024, sfiind hud bocn reccived for Assesscment Year 2022-23 of Rs 78 Lukhs including Inlerest an refund umountiug t Rs. 6 Lakhs (previous year: refund had been received for Assessement Year
2021-22 of Rs.29 4 Lakhs including Interest wn refumid amounting Lo Rs. 2.46 Lakhs)
9 Other non-current ussets
Ay at Aval
Pertiofon 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
inveeneeud, eomderad good
Capital sdimmees 269 [
Ieferred sental deposi {Rofer e below) 16 14
Trepayments £ -
Blance with government anlontice [ 24
6,543 3,136

Note -
Deferred rental deposit represents discounted value of seeurity deposit as per [nd AS 109




( CuratLane Trading Private Limised
Notea to the standulone finuncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

. omprgnids an N sk, imless thetsine sttedd)

1 Imventories
Asat Avat
==, Particsters 531 Muarch 2024 31 March 2023

\ Ravw atetinls 7241 12,545

Work-in-progruss 1,550 1,249

Fu d govds 73,604 61,835
P Stock-in-trade 18 13,703
L l!l&‘l‘&l‘l 3 EJ

Misben &

i) The et af imverories rocingriised as an expenss fehdes INR L1 lakhs qprcions voar: INR 6.7 Likh) in texpoct of write dhwn of mvemnony i er-realisble value.
( = i The bmvvenbey. frschudies ol parchused on Toan froen hatik smwounting b INR 40,220 lakhs iprevious yoar: IR 20,931 likhs)

it riventory inclisbes RT1 ki of £500d aut-of which %63 kg are habged through gold loan from bank, fitie cantinets anild ppen veders wnd ¥ kg sre imbedged as ot 31 March 2024, Carpvmg vilie ol the gold

idged wp security for laan 16 Re SEI68 Lakhs (Pruvhies year Terventery inchdes 778 Ky of Gold out of which T67 kg ure hiedged thraugh gihd foan from bank, future contructs ond opwn ceuders and 8 kg ore
wdiedpend s a0 31 Masch 2028, Carrvirg Vil o the gold phadped as securily ot Bowary 10 Hs 46,000 laklve)

T (iv) Refer point 3(vii) under sigmficant accounting policies fue masde of valuation
( () Remaining valuc of inventorics are given as securily on Fafi+(y 1su basis for bank overdrft and cash card. Also refer notes 18()

) Inw:nl(‘)ry lying with the job worker amounting to Rs.3,363 lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 3,393 lakhs)

(7\ 11 Financlal assets

(i) Tende recehahies

Asad Avut
Fartimeim 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

~
Unsceured
656 1344

Trade recervubles, considered good
Receivables from reluted partics (Refer note 29) 1513 2261
Less: Allowance for doubtiil trade receivubles

2,169 3,605

Trade receivahles, credit imparied 16 -

Less Allowance for doubtful trade receivables (6

(
( h 2,169 3,605
€

() Agcing of receivables :

As it 31 March 2024

Dutstaniing for Tollowing periods frant dus date of imoice

Eacticulary Les than 6 months 6 months>> (23 23years* | More than 3 years Tutal
L scar Veurs -

143 Vnshwpnited Trode hil feredd pood 2,164 5
1111 Undispuled Trade Recervibles — which have significunt increase in credit risk .
(111} Undisputed Trade Recenables — eredit impaired
(1v) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good -
(V) Mhsputed Trade Receivables — which hove signilicant increase in credit nisk -
il Disputed Trade Reeetvubles — credit impaired - - -
T 216 21 - L1} - LIBS

*Reprrenents umonnin lexe ey B S0,000

o - 2169

~~

- I . . - It

As ap 3) March 2023 2

Dutstnniling for faliowing peends Trom due date ol iny wlee

R Less than 6 months # D 5o 2-3years | More than 3 yenrs Total
1 vedr vears

111 End Tk hles ~ e el 3496 i - B -
11} Undrsputed 1rade Reecivables — winch have significant inerease in credil risk : . -
{1111 Undisputed Trode Reccivables — credil impaired

iy Disputed Trnde Receivables— considered good

{01 Disgrites] Trade Recervables — which lsvs signiticant increnss 4 eredit nsk
gt Trmde Reveisalles - ereldil anypainel

3,603

{h) Movement in the expeeted credit Toss allowunce :

Asat Av sl
Pretivalam 31 Murch 2024 31 Masrsh 2023
- 43
6 .
= (43

/Af”‘\/'-\f'\f\

Bulunce ut the beginning of the vear
Provision created dunng the year
Bad debts wnlten off during the vear
Balance at the end of the year

/\/"\

o~
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Cormlane Trading Private Limited
Mates to the andatone financial statements for the year ended 3) March 2024
AR it o AN hablvn, e ss aterranse stted]

Financial assels (continued)

(i) Cash and cash cquivalents

Asal Asal
Parthibe 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hund 458 109
Balances with bunks :
{i) In cwrent account 1,629 397
(i) in EEIC nccount M .
AL} ... S

Note : The balance under current acsount includes funds in transi primarily for credil card receipts yet (o be crediied (o the Company of Rs 495 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 216 lakhs)

(iii) Other bank halances

‘ As nt Asat
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deposits placed for Gold hedging 09 -
Deposits under Lien (Refer nole below) 195 178
Total 504 178

Note : Represents fixed depasits placed with banks for duty free gold purchased for export purpose and deposits placed for disputed duc of indirect taxes

{iv) Loams receivable.

Avat Aval
Fardedan 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Erveciired, considered good
Hinplace loans 128 523
" 124 523
(+) Other financial assets
As at As at
faniern 31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Tinrcural, considered gl
1ease receivables (Refer note 30) 1151 649
Scourity deposits 208 335
Interest reccivuble from StudioC (Refer Note 29) 147 56
Interest acerued on fixed deposits 26 2
Acorued Income (Refer nole (b) below) 102 59
Ollaer receivable (Refer note (u) below) 1672 563
Relund receivable from government authonties 1094 .
Murgin money for gold future contracts 1502 2319

£002 4201

Note :
(@) Bulonce pertains o amount receivable from franchisee’s towards day to day expenditure
h) Acaired meome represents bulance towards hill discounting for vendor invoices and duty drowback reccivable

2 Other current assels

Avab Ag at

Particulars 31 Murch 2024 31 Murch 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Rulunce with government authontics (Refer Note (a) below) 11,996 10911
I'repayments 185 636
Right ta recover returned goods {Reler Note (b) below) 442 an
Other assels 2 R
Advance Lo supphers ex3 1007

LN 12873

Note:
(@) Balwnce with government authoritics pertains carrent und non current GST iredits of Rs 19,
(6) Right ta recover retumed goods represcals the amounl of goods expected (0 be received by the Company on account of sales retum Also, refer disclosure mndc under note 33

150 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 13,255 lnkhs) in respeet to GST inpul credil, transitiona] eredit, deemed credit and refund receivable




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Nofes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AT amounts in INR lukhs, unless otherwise stated;

13 Share capital

. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars
No vf shares Amount No of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity share of Rs. 2 each with voling nghts 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Total authorised share capital 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Equity share of Rs. 2 each with voting rights 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667
Total issued share capital 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to
Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining asset

The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme
During the financial year 2017-18, the Company introduced Caratlane Stock Option

plans:
a. Executive Management Stock Option Scheme 2009

b. CaratLane Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013

¢. Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the C
granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from t

months from the date of resignation

one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the

s of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts

Plan 2017 ('the Plan'). This Plan supersedes the following stock options and stock option

ompany. The vesting period of the option is one to four years from the date of grant. Options
he date of vesting. For employees leaving the organization, an option can be exercised within 3

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan. The movement in options issued are as below:

For the year ended  Weighted average

For the year ended Weighted average

Particulars 31 March 2024 excreise price 31 March 2023 exereise price

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 491,711 188 574,000 174
Oplions granted during the year - - 2,500 474
Options forteited during the year (27,100) 436 (9,000) 3oz
Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) (464,311) 173 - -
Owntions exercised during the year (300) 474 (75.789) 79
Quistanding at the end of the year - 491,711 188
Options exercisable at the end of the year B 379,711 133

Cash settled options

Particulars

For the year ended  For the yecar ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Options granted during the year
Options forfeited during the year

Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) 464,311 -
Options settled during the year (411,499) -
Outstanding at the end of the year 52,812 -

Note

|, During the year ended 31 March 2024, Board on 13 December 2023 had approved the conversion of the exisitng E

settlement of outstanding Vested and unexercised Options to all eligible employees/ ex-
approved the net cash payout of Rs, 20,083 Lakhs (adjusted for exercise price amounting to Rs. 608 Lakhs

in licu of the total 4,11,499 Vested and unexercised Options under the Company's ESOP Plan to the eligible employees/

unexercised Options,

Nel change after adjusting the ESOP reserve with the consideration has been debited to retained eamnings under the head of

debited to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 1,349 Lakhs (net of tax of INR 454 Lakhs).

2. Asat 31 March 2024, there are 52,812 options outstanding pending settlement, of which 16,200 have vested and 36,612

at Rs.5,028 per option ameounting to Rs.2,076 Lakhs, The impact of fair valuation of cash sett

to statement of profit and loss amounting to Rs. 166 lakhs

SOP plan to cash seltled plan and approved cash

employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options. The Board further
as applicable to the respective einployees/ ex- employees) to be paid

ex-employees on surrender of the said Vested and

Other equity, amounting to INR 14,481 Lakhs (nel

of tax of INR 4,870 Lakhs). For unvested options, net change after adjusting the related ESOP reserve with the fair value on the date of modification of the plan has been

are unvested. These options have been fair valued

led ESOP plan froin the date of modification to 31 March 2024 has been debited




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value measurement
The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant
date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

The weighted average remaining contractual life of the options outstanding as of 31 March 2023 under the Caratlane stock Options Plan was 6 years

The key inputs used in Black-Scholes-Merton Model for calculating fair value of options under the scheme as on the date of grant are as follows:

Particulars i .
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No. of options granted - 2,500
Date of grant - August 12022
For 1,375 options
. X immediate vesting
Vesting period and 1,125 graded
- vesting over 4 years
Volatility rate (%) - 33.71%
Risk free rate (%) - 721%
Expected life of options (years) - 5.0
Weighted average fair value per share (Rs.) - 1,128

There are no options granted during the year ended 31 March 2024.

The fair value of the options is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions:

Particulars 31 March 2024 Date of conversion

13 December 2023
Fair Value 5,027 5,027
Share Price 5,028 5,028
Risk free rate (%) 4.30% 4.30%
Adjusted Beta 0.78 0.78
Equity Risk premium 5% to 7% 5% to 7%
Country risk premium 1.60% 1.60%
India Inflation 4.00% 4.00%
US Inflation 2.00% 2.00%
Average Cost of Equity 12.70% 12.70%

No. of options 52,812 464311
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{otes to the fi ts for the year ended 31 March 2024

dal tal stat

13 Share capital (continued)

(A amennis in INR lakhs, unless otherwive stated)

l (i) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (continued)

= The stock price of the Company is arrived using discounted cashflow, Implied volatility is the unit at which the price of shares of peer listed campanies has fluctuated during
the past period. The expected time to maturity/ expected life of the options is the period for which the Company expects the options to be alive, which has been taken as 10

| years subject to adjustment of time lapses from the date of grant. The risk free rate considered for calculation is based on the yield an Government Securities for 10 years as on

the date of valuation.

(iii) Reconciliation of the shares tanding at the beg and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Parti
SEHEHIAS No. of shares LTI No. of shares Amognt
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Enuiity shares with voting rights
At the beginning of the year 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665
Add: Issue of shares pursuant to options being exercised by employees * 300 0 75,789 2
At the end of the year 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667
* Represents amount less than Rs.50,000
iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars No. of sh held G No. of sh: held i
0. of shares hel holding o. of shares he holding
Kauity shares with voting rights
Titan Company Limited (Refer Notes below) 33,343,141 99.99% 24,036,325 72.08%
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti - 0.00% 3,835,327 11,50%
M. Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% 3,700,000 11,10%
Mr. Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% 1,655.000 4.96%
Total 33,343,141 100% 33,226,652 100%
(v) Shareholding of promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 202
P ¢ ) " o .
fomoferaame No. of Shares | %o of totul shares N Change No. of Shares | % of total shares N Change
during the year during the vear
Titan Company Limited (Refer Notes below) 33,343,141 99.99% 39% 24,036,325 72.08% -
Mr, Mithun Padam Sacheti - 0.00% -100% 3,835,327 11.50% -
Mr, Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% -100% 3,700,000 11.10% -
Mr. Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% -100% 1.655.000 4.96% -

Notes :

the Company on a fully diluted basis to Titan Company Limited
2. Includes shares held by directors jointly with Titan Company Limited and Nominee Directors

1. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board in its meeting held on 28 November 2023 took on record the transfer of shares held by Mr, Mithun Padam Sacheti, the Founder and his family
members, Mr. Siddhartha Padam Sacheti & Mr. Padamchand Sacheti (collectively, the Sellers) for purchase of 91.90,327 equity shares representing 27.56% of the total paid-up equity capital of

&
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- CuratLane Trading Private Limited
f Notes to the standulone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
L {10 amonnts in INR fakii, unfess othersive siivdl
14 Other equity
Sy
. Asat Asnt
—— 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
S (Cminem 41,149 41,141
% (Amonms recewved on 1ssie of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securties premnum)
! Stack options outstanding acconnt (Refor Note 13) - 864
(Shares granted 10 employee under employee stock option pian)
™
Retnned earnings (Refer Note 13) (26,030) 20277
(Retained carmings comprise of the Company’s prioy vears ' losses after iax)
Other comprehensive income (607) (326}
[ & (Represents aciuarial gam or loss on remeasnrement of net defined benefit liahiin)
5 14512 21402
15 Financial liabilities - Non Current
=
i. Borrowings
As at Asnl
kel
-~ Pt 31 Mareh 2024 31 March 2023
Al amortised cost:
Sceured
Long-tenm borrowings Term loan (Reler note 3 below) - 219
Less: Current maturilics of Jong-lerm borrawings = (219)
Unsecured
Lang-term harrowings Term loan (Refer note 1 & 2 below) 16,512 -
Less: Current maturities of long-term borrowings (3.476) -
f~ 13,036 -
Notes : .
1. Duiringt the vedr cded 31 March 2024 the Company s taken uneosured tenm loan smwonting 1 Rs 17317 lskhis from HDFE Bank 1d for brand buildmg activities. The
intered rte oat The ferm boun rngess betwesn T ARY W 79045 per manm aned pavabis sves (0 el nghly dirstallinents heginning frosm Jnnuory 2024.
2. Durine the year ended 3 March 2024 an anoinl of s 808 1l beas b nepaich suliting bo (e show ansocised loim
3. The o outstding o= 0t 1 Apell 2023 amounting fo Rs 219 Lakhs hos boen repaid duting the year swhich sps <ocumed ayuinsd the corporale guarantee issued by Titan
Company Linuted al an interest rate of 0 5% per annum which has been discharged
il
Particuls e Aot
- 31 Murch 2004 31 March 2023
Lase habu s (Rufor pote 311} 0,791 33035
30,721 230125
ili. Other financial liabllities
,
B Particulars . A et
- 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Humtal depoit 550 362
Cash seltled ESOP liabilty 260 =
840 362
16 Other non-current linbilitics
( Particul Ay at As at
urpeden 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Exeferred rental by 143 X7
/, 145 K7
! Note
Delerred rental hability represents drscounted value of security deposit as per Ind AS 109
E 17 Provisiony
~
Asat Anal
iy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{ Torem 1o fow gradunty (eler note 313+ Long Tenn 1137 [TE
. 1137 i3
¢

=




Carnt Lane Trading Private Limited
Nites to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
£l iy in INK lublie, werrless otfierese sbibid)

18 Financial linbillties - Current

i Barrowings

Asal Asnl

PR 31 Murch 2024 31 Murch 2023
Securcd
Rank overdralt and cash credit (Refer Note | and 3 Below) 35827 33,237
Curent mutuntics of long lerm borrowings E 219
Unsecured
Bill discounting (Refer Note 2 Below) 6887 -
13unk overdraft and cosh eredit . 1.993
Commercinl paper (Refer Note 34) . 21,262
Current mntunties of long term borrowings (Refer Note 1501)) 3470 -

46,190 56,711
-

Notes :

1. Secured ogainst the Compa entory, receivubles and Property, Plont and Equipment on puri-passu basis The inlerest rate on the overdrall varics from 7.25% to 9.5% per
ansiteam ) &6 poyable st mwomhly ntervale woerdrall s pavilibe oy demnnd

2 [hmiig the vear embad 31 Mareh) 2024, the Company hae enpered mio an arrangenwent with Hieeivable Exchangs of India limited and with credit period ranging between 86 1o
1900 dhays i nteres ol rnging betiveen 705% 1o 7 300 jowards neverse factoring ol MEMIE pmvnents.

3 The Conprany. s filed stabetivnts as ot the quater end with e hunkawhich ane in ngrocsion with 1l hooks of scenunts as at respective iguarter ends

il. Gold on loun

Partlculars —_ ——
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secured
Pavable W hanks* 40,220 a3l
Jllélﬂ 20,931
+Secured against inventory and receivables Inchades amioimis payable agsins pold purchased from various banks under gold an lonn scheme. The interest rate of the gold un loan

vanes from 2 25% 10 2.60% per annum as a1 31 Masch 2024 and is payalike sl monthly intervals ‘The eredit peniod under the aforesaid arrangement is 180 days from the daie of the
dehivery of gold

Lense linbilltics

Particulars At L
) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1= Jantliiies [refer note 30] - Current 4457 aan
4457 AT
. Trade payaliles
Particular Anat Asal
31 Murch 2034 31 March 2023
Trade payahles
Otanding dises ol mpeio st srall entirprases | Rofer noe (h) Below | 1404 LR
Ouistanding dues ol creditors otlier tim nucro und small enterprises
- Cruditors for goods 14,581 8,222
- Creditors for services THIM THIR
25 H33 19,306
(n) Ageing of Trade Payubles :
Aval 31 March 2034¢
Quistanding for following perinds from due date of payment
Particulars -
Not due Lews than | year 1-2 vears 2-3 yeary Marr than 3 years Tolal
[0y MSMIE 3414 . - . . 3004
[uih EHbers 20,984 1,435 - . 22,419
it Do s = MSME . = B 3 .
vy Isgmtiad dims = Uty - . i - B =
14398 1435 - - - 25531
As ut 31 March 2023:
Partheul Outstanding for follwing perfods from due date of payment
- i Nt due Less than | year 1-2 ycars 2-3 yean Mare than 3 yeary Totul
11 MSMIE 3462 - 4 - - 3466
(1) Others 15,029 (7 116 " - 15,840
(m) Dispued dues - MSME . . . = -
() Dispuled dues — Others - = - 3 -
18,491 678 120 17 - 19306
e ==
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Nates ta the standalone financiul sistements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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1l

(b) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

There are no material dues owed hy the Company lo Micro and Small enierprises, which are oulstanding for more than 45 days during the year and as ot 31 March 2024 This
\nformation ns required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has heen determined o the extent such parties have heen identified on the busis of

information avarlable with the Company and hos been relied upon by the auditors

Paribeulars Asal As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0 the principal amount and the interest s oo roraiming anpaid o any supplir at the et ol aich secounting year:
- Principal 3407 3,466
- Interest . .
(b) the amount of interest paid hy the buver in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Meduwim Enterprises Development -
Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), along with the smaunt of the payment made to the supplicr beyond the apjwsinted duy during cach
dccaunling year,
(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which hus been paid but beyond the 7 .
appointed day during the year) hut withoul adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small ond Medium Cnterprises
Development Act, 20062
(d) the amount of interest acerued and remaming unpaid at the end of cach occounting yesr, and - -
(e} the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil such date wien the interest -
e whune are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of of a deductible expend unaber section
23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
s Sad
Pues (o Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information colleeted by the Management
v. Other linancial liabilities
g Asnt As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Cupittal eredions n2 192
st Payvable 219 .
OI" liabulity.(Also Refer Note 13) 1817 -
Employee payables 614 1,472
2842 1,664
Other current linhillitiey
. Asal As at
L 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred rental deposit ( Hsfier e helos ) 42 23
Statulory dues 492 545
Liability for sales return (Refer note 33) 684 47
Advance [rom (ranchisee 36 40
Advance [rom customers 4,245 5.522
Other 345 -
9814 G601
Note :
Deferred rental deposit £ :presents discounted value of deposit as per Ind AS 109
Pronbsions
Purticalurs Asat L
31 March 2024 31 March 2013
Provamn for grmit (Refa note 31 15 181
I'rovision lar compensated sbsences (Refer note 31) 586 189
Provision (ot warranty 55 8%
1,030 T5H
Note a: Provision for warranty
Movement be iy proclsim of warmmty s e ve
1 Ayat Asat
Phrtkabip 31 March 2024 31 Mureh 2023
Opening balance [ 104
Provisions made during the year 340 155
Uulsations / reversed dunng the yem (273) an
Provision at the end of the year 255 188




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless ctherwise stated)

21

22

23

23

Revenue from operations

For the year ended

Satieniarg 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Export 4,417 4,112
Domestic 283,794 211,397
Sale of products 288,211 215,509
Other operating revenue (Refer note below) 17,604 -
305,815 215,509

Note :

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company sold gold bullion amounting to Rs.17,604 lakhs to various customers dealing in bullion

which is disclosed as other operating revenues.

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Contracted price
Reduction towards variable consideration
Revenue recognised

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives, etc.

Other income

350,860 251,281
45,045 35,772
305,815 215,509

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Interest on loan (Refer Note 29)

Corporate expense cross charge (Refer Note 29)
Franchisee signining fees

Deferred rental income

Rent deposit equalization

Net Gain on termination of leases

Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (Refer Note 30)
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on sale of current investments

Net gain or loss on foreign currency translation
Rental Income

Interest on Margin Deposit

Export duty drawback

Miscellaneous income

(1) Cost of material consumed

285 76
356 231
373 360
151 131
30 55
388 =
692 553
100 38
53 3
115 190
155 76
103 10
126 129
252 325
3,179 2,177

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Inventories of Raw materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases
Less: Inventories of Raw Materials at the end of the year *

* Includes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

(b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

12,545 12,483
198,071 160,704

9.271) (12,545)
201,345 160,642

For the year cnded

e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Purchases of traded goods 24,247 15,784
24,247 15,784
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(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

23 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

24

26

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Finished goods
- Closing stock *
- Opening stock

Work-in-progress
- Closing stock

- Opening stock
Stock-in-trade

- Closing stock
- Opening stock

Increase in inventory

* Includes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

Employee benefits expense

75,047 61,835
61.835 32.649
(13,212) (29,186)

1,550 1,289
1.289 1.078
(261) (211)
18,365 13,703
13,703 7.170
(4,662) (6,533)
(18,135) (35.930)

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31)
Staff welfare expense

Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 31)

Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 13)

Finance cost

14,712 11,726
398 328
1,496 1,191
259 174
148 113
17,013 13,532

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Interest on borrowings (Refer note below)
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 30.2)
Others

Note:

5,003 3,005
3,082 1,636

25 17
8,110 4,658

Interest on borrowing includes Interest on Gold on Loan of Rs.737 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of Rs 4,266 Lakhs for the year ended 31
March 2024 (Previous year : Interest on Gold on Loan 654 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of Rs.2,351 Lakhs)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5(i))
Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer Note 6)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5(ii))

2,195 1,175
4,630 2,548
1.418 750
8,243 4473
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27 Other expenses

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advertising 20,633 15,452
Agent commission 19,708 13,558
Rent (Refer note 30) 457 489
Freight and forwarding 2,289 1,618
Travelling and conveyance 918 824
Professional service charges 3,425 3,328
Bank charges 953 803
Software expenditure 2,584 1,239
Power and fuel 602 365
Communication expenses 153 118
Rates and taxes 177 196
Director sitting fee (Refer note 29) 60 29
Repairs and maintenance 1,180 773
Payments to auditors (Refer 27.1 below) 55 55
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer 27.2 below) 148 18
Property, plant and equipment written off 24 96
Intangible assets written off 3 17
Stores and consumables 345 264
Royalty (Refer note 29) 456 322
Miscellaneous expenses 394 1,000
54,564 40,564

Notes :

27.1 (i) Payment to auditors (Excluding taxes)

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

For statutory audit

For tax audit

For limited review

Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses

28

28
2
24

o
| —
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27.2 Corporate Social Responsibility:

(i) Gross amount approved by the board and required to be spent towards corporate social responsibility by the Company during the year:

Rs. 148 lakhs
(ii) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1. Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year
2. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
3. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
-Construction/acquisition of any asset
- On purposes other than above
4, Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year
5. Total of previous years shortfall
6. Reason for short fall

7. Nature of CSR Activities

148
148

76
(72)

Health, Education,
Skill development,

17

Health, Education,
Skill development,

Disaster relief, Wellness Disaster relief, Wellness

and Water,
Sanitation and Hygiene,
Entreprencurship

and Water,
Sanitation and Hygiene,
Entrepreneurship

(i) CSR Contribution to Related parties

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Related Parties - -
Unrelated parties 76 18
(iv) Details of Unspent obligations :

N For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024
Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023 -
Amount required to be spend during the year 148
Amount spent during the year from Company's bank account 76
Amount spent during the year from separate CSR unspent account -
Closing Balance with Company 20
Closing Balance in separate CSR unspent account 52
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

28  Earnings per share

Reconcili of basic and diluted shares used in computing per share
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Basic and diluted profit per share
Profit after tax 10,077 10,240
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of basics earning per share 33,346,125 33,296,665
Add : Dilutive effect of stock options 319,005 213.096
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted eaming per share 33,665,129 33,509,761
Earning per share
Nominal value of share (in INR) 2 2
Eamings per share - Basic (in INR) 30.22 30.75
Eamings per share - Diluted (in INR) 29.93 30.56
29  Related party disclosures
i) Relationship
a) Holding company . Titan Company Limited
b) Subsidiary : StudioC Inc
c) Key management personnel Mr. Avnish Anand, Managing Director (w.e.f 2 January 2024)
M. Avnish Anand, Chief executive officer (w.e.f | September 2023 to 1 January 2024)
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f 28 November 2023)
Mr. Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Sonthalia, Director
Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (w.e.f 22 December 2022)
Mr. Haresh Ram Chawla, Independent Director
Mr. Sandeep Anant Kulhalli, Non-executive Director (Resigned w.e f. 9 November 2022)
Mr. Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Director
Ms. Neelam Chhiber, [ndependent Director
Mr. Manoj Bhanawat, Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Ahona Das (Company Secretary) (Resigned w.e.f 31 March 2024)
d) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of Microgo, LLP (till 28 November 2023)
Key Management Personnel has significant influence Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
Starfire Gems Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
Luxury Online Retail India Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
M/s Yashrey (till 28 November 2023)
¢) Group entity Tata Sons Private Limited
f) Fellow subsidiary Titan Commodity Trading Limited
Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:
Name of the related party Nature of transaction pofinehparendes
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited Sale of products - 980
Reimbursement of expense payable 22 12
Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of goods 18 113
Sale of products 8
Rent payable 11 22
StudioC Inc Sale of products 4,129 3,837
Purchase of goods 5 -
Corporate expense cross charge 356 231
Loan given during the year # 2,863 1,771
[nterest on loan 285 76
Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty 451
Titan Company Limited Purchase of goods - 89
Royalty 5 322
Other Income - 8
Rent and miscellaneous income 128 34
Reimbursement of expenses - Encircle 30 14
Insurance, salary and other expenses 538 492
Interest on Corporate guarantee * 0 3

* Represents amount less than Rs.50,000
# includes unrealised gain of Rs.45 Lakhs (Previous year : +4 Lakhs)
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Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
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29  Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below (Contd):

Name of the related party Nature of transaction

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Titan Commodity Trading Limited Commodity Trading Transactions
Cash Margin money
Interest income

Commission on commodity trading services

M/s Yashrey Rent
Security Deposit

Short term employee benefits
Long term employee benefits

Key management personnel

Transactions with the related partics during the vear are set out in the table below:

554
116
103

17

310

6,199
40

509
1,386
10

4

103
207

382

Name of the related party Nature of transaction

For the vear ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Neelam Chhiber Sitting fees 19 11
Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 16 8
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 15 6
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Sitting fees - 4
Neelam Chhiber Commission to Directors* 21 -
Haresh R Chawla Commission to Directors* 21
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors® 14 -
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors*® 4 -
Microgo LLP Reimbursement of expenses/services - - 4
Receivable
* excludes provision for commission payable to directors for year ended 31 March 2024 amounting to Rs.81 Lakhs
Balances as on balance sheet date
t As at
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 31 '\l‘::::l 2024 31 Ma :::1 2023
Starfire Gems Private Limited Trade payable - 4
Security deposits B 6
M/s Yashrey Security Deposit 207
Studio C Inc. Trade receivable 1,501 2,228
Interest receivable 147 56
Loan receivable 4,861 1,998
Investment in share capital 109 109
Titan Company Limited Trade payable 3 2
Royalty Payable 5 324
Trade receivable 12 32
Advarce to supplier 23 -
Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty payable 451 -
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Cash margin receivable 1,502 1,386
Interest receivable 25 10
Trade payable 112 -
Key management personnel Long term employee benefits 60 20
Short term employee benefits 22 16

Letter of financial support provided to StudioC Inc. USA for the period ended 31 March 2024,

Notes:

a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company
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30  Leases
30.1  Amounts recosnised in balance sheel
. , Asat Asat
il 1 g iHote 31 Mareh 2024 31 Myreh 2023
(i) Right-of-use nsscts 6
Buildings 24,611 20,039
(i1) Lease liabilitics
Non-curreni 1501i) 30,791 23,025
Current 18¢in) 4457 3,317
35,248 26,342
(iii) Leasc reeeivables
Non-current Tin 7,462 4,698
Current 1 1{v) 1.151 649
8613 5,347
30.2  Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss
. . Asat Asat
Eauticules il 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Butldings 206 4,630 2,548
(i1} Interest expense (included 1n finance cosl) 25 3,082 1,636
(i) Interest income on sub-lease (included in other mcome) 22 692 553
(iv) Fxpense relating Lo short-lerm leases 27 192 183
(v) Lixpense relating 1o variable lease payments 27 23 17

(a) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the standalone statement of profit and|

loss.
(b) The total cash outflow net of sublease receipts for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs.6,674 lakhs. (Previous year : Rs.3,005 Lakhs)

30.3 Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Upto 1 year 5,420 4,151
1 to 2 years 5,210 3,905
2 to 3 years 5,087 3,678
3 to 4 years 4,550 3,516
4 to 5 years 3,544 2,934
Above S years 14,022 10,755
Total 37,833 28,939
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31 Employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution plan
The contributions recognized in the standalone statement of profit and loss during the year are as under:

Particulars

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2024

Employee provident fund
Employee stale insurance

397 320
1 7

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
salary and years of employment with the company.
The plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risk such as interest risk and salary risk.

Interest risk
Salary risk

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn

A movement in the bon;mere-st- rate \-A/ill_iiﬁpact the plan liability. ]
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries
of plan participants, as such an increase in the salary of the plan participants and vice-versa.

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate (p.a.) 7.20% 7.30%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)
- Corporate 10.95% 10.78%
- Non-corporate 10.60% 9.76%
- Manufacturing 11.09% 9.35%
Attrition rate
- Corporate 22.33% 26.67%
- Non-corporate 22.67% 24.00%
- Manufacturing 4.00% 6.67%

- The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years.
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.

Sensitivity analysis

while holding all other assumptions constant.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 1,296 1,378
1,379 1,297

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 854 893
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 896 857

i As at As at
Maturity profile 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Expected benefits for year 1 199 181
Expected benefits for year 2 185 161
Expected benefits for year 3 185 139
Expected benefits for year 4 183 127
Expected benefits for year 5 164 109
Expected benefits in next 5 years and above 1,483 637
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31

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss are as follows:

. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 202 141
Interest on net defined benefit liability 57 33
Total expense charged to the standalone statement of profit and loss 259 174
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
As at As at
rticul
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 66 (24)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 49 0
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 261 131
Remeasurements during the year 376 107

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the standalone statement of profit and loss. The
remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income, The amount included in the standalone balance sheet ansing from the entily’s

obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined benefit liability

Current service cost

Interest on defined benefit obligations

Amount recognised outside the standalone statement of profit and loss account
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit liability

¢) Compensated absences
This provision covers the Company's liability for eamed leave

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

874 629

202 141

57 34

66 (24)

49 0

261 131

(173) (37}

1,336 874

Provision as at 31 March 2024 amounting to Rs. 253 lakhs (2023: Rs. 130 lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer

the settlement for atleast twelve months after the reporting date

Simitar assumptions have been made as per the defined benefit plan.

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement af
the net liability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the standalone balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its

compensated absences is as follows:

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at

31 March 2023

Compensated absences
Current

586

389

586

389
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32

33

34

Operating segment

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by
industry classes. The Managing Director have been identified as the CODM.Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry classes The operating|
segment has been identified to be "Jewellery" as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one segment.

Right to recover returned goods and Liability for sales return

The Company has a return policy whereby customers can return the jewellery purchased by them within a period of 15 days, Therefore based on the expected sales return
the company creates a liability for sales return on the sale value and corresponding right to recover returned goods towards cost of sales for such sales return in the
financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Nature As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Liability for sales return
Opening balance 472 356
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (472) 1356)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 684 472
Closing balance 684 472
Right to recover returned goods
Opening balance 311 246
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns @311 (246)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 442 311
Closing balance 442 311
Commercial paper
The following tables set forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:
31 March 2024
Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months 4-6 Months
Face value - - -
Carrying value - = o
31 March 2023
Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months 4-6 Months
Face value - 21,500 -
Carrying value = (21,262) 4
(a) The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at 31 March 2024 .
Instrument ICRA CRISIL
. CRISIL AA+/Stable
Commercial paper ICRA [A1+] (Reaffirmed) (Reaffirmed)
(b) Movement of Commercial Paper :
Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2024 For the year ended 31 March 2023
Opening Balance 21,262 14,864
Additions during the year 61,930 93,426
Repayments during the vear 83,192 87,028
Closing balance - 21,262

Note : As on 31 March 2024, the Company has repaid all it's commercial paper, accordingly the Company believe SEBI (LODR) is not applicable for the Company
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35

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

U]

Contingent liabilities and commitments

As at As at

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

- Guarantees excluding financial guarantees - -
- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Sales tax matters (refer note (i) below) - 677
- Other money for which the Company is contingently liable - -

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act,1952. However,
considering that there are numerous interpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the earlier periods, the
Company has made a provision for provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the said judgement. The Company will evaluate its position and update its
provision, if required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The Company does not expect any material impact of the same.

During the previous year, the Company received Show Cause Notice (‘SCN”) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate of Enforcement, Government of
India (*DOE’) alleging that the Company received Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI’) during the year(s) 2011 to 2014 in lieu of issue of shares to overseas investor, which
was utilised in Single Brand Retail Trading activities without prior approval from the RBI. The show-cause notice pertained to an alleged violation of FEMA Rules as
Foreign Direct [nvestment in single-brand retail was not permitted under automatic route in above stated periods.

The Company, based upon the management briefing, approached a former Chief Justice of India who had opined that CaratLane was not in violation of the FEMA rules as
at the relevant period, it was only engaged in B2B sales and was not in retail trade. Furthermore, during the year, the Company filed detailed reply to the DOE with
clarification vide their letter dated October 28, 2022. Thereafter the Company also preferred a Writ Petition bearing No. 30893 of 2022 (“Wirit Petition”), filed before the
Hon’ble High Court of Judicature at Madras (‘Hon’ble Court’), challenging the SCN and proceedings before DOE. The same was heard by the Hon’ble Court on
November 21, 2022, and DOE was directed to file a counter-aftidavit as its response, within 4 weeks. However, as on date, no response has been filed by DOE and the
time period for filing the same has also lapsed, Thelisting of the matter for hearing before Hon’ble Court has not been notified till date

Based on the legal opinion received and its assessment of transactions and provisions of FEMA Rules for the years under consideration, the Management considered that
no provision is required to be carried in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 in relation to the above matter. The Management would evaluate this
position in subsequent years, based on outcome of proceedings before the Hon’ble Court and DOE.

CENVAT demand order for Rs. 677 Lakhs was raised by the Principal Commissioner, Chennai Nungambakkam office vide Order No. 47/2022 CH.N.GST dated
28.03.2022. During the year upon hearing the proceedings were dropped by the principal commissioner vide order no, 10/2023 CH.N.GST daled 27.12.2023 with no
demand and hence no contingency in this regard.

Letter of Financial Support to StudioC Inc, USA.

Note:
The above amounts are based on the notice of demand or the Assessment Orders or notification by the relevant authorities, as the case may be, and the Company lsr
contesting these claims with the respective authorities. Outflows, if any, arising out of these claims would depend on the outcome of the decisions of the appellate
authorities and the Company's rights for future appeals before the judiciary. No reimbursements are expected.
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36 Flnuncial instruments

36.1 Cutcpurics of financial instruments

Finuncial assels

P Particulars As al 31 March 2024 As at 31 Murch 2023
4 & Menstred al amartived oot
« Loans Lo employees (Refer nole 110v)) 128 523
- Securily nnd other deposils (Refer note 7 ) and nole 11(v)) 2,446 2,251
Y ! = Trade recevables (Refer note Hgi)) 2,169 3,605
2 = Cash ond cash equivalents (Refer note V(i) 2,11 306
« Other bank halances (Refer nate [1(n)) 504 17%
- Lease receryables (Refer note 7m) and note 11{¥)) /,613 5,347
Dbt Thisencind meaily AT 5313

[ Total fimancial suwets 1 amurtived ot 28375 7628

T sty 15375 17028

Finaneial Nahilithes
(- Particulurs As a1 31 March 2024 As 1 31 March 2023
u. Mcasurcd u( fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
- Ehofd o boun  Reter note 18 (i) 40,230 20,934
/ Tutal finuncial lshilities mesvured at FYTPL (a) 40,220 0,231
‘ =, Messured ut wmartised cont
- Borrowings 39,226 S6.711
- Rental deposits 840 362
’ - Trude payables 25833 19.306
( - Lease liabiluies 35,248 26,342
= (et fimunewl lahildizs a3 1
it {hy 123,989 104,385
(__‘ i fu+ ) 14,20 125314

362 (i) Fair value hiersrchy
This nate explaims about basis for deternunation of fair values of various financiat ns

i Purticulary Lavel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3 Totul
Finangind wsvety nd Habilivies meavared si fuir value = Murch 31, 3024
Financial labilities

= Liaild ran 020 - - 40,710
7 Total finunsial seis L) S = 8330,
) Particulans Lew | Level 2 Livel 3 Tyl

Financial avwets and llabilities measured at fair value - March 31, 2023

- Gol fpan M3 . . 0931
( Totul Ninunclal st 0731 - = RN

wutual funds The fair value of all equily wstruments that ure traded in the stock
| value.Gald loan which ure to be repaid based on guoted price as on the date of the

:Level | hiemrehy includes finaneial wstruments measured wsing quoted prices This includes listed equity
smg price ul he reportmg period The mutund funds sre vulued using the closing et

besel

exchamges 15 valued usmg the ¢

repiyment. The Gold Toan has heen valued at the closing gotd rotes

( Level 2: The fur salue of finanesal mstruments that are not traded in an etive market (for example Over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniues which maximize the use of obscrvale data
and rely as hiltle as passible on entts specilic esmates 1 all significant inputs required fo fair value an instrument nre absersable, the wstruracnt is included in level 2

Lesel 3: 11 one ar mare of the signdicant inpuls s nol based on ohservable market datn, the instrument is included in Tevel 3. This is the case of unlisted instruments, depasils, ewployee loaus cle

(ii) Vuluation technigue used to determine fuir vulue

-~

Specilic value lechuiques used (o value lnuncial instruments include:

- the use ol yuoted markel prices for hsted instrunents
- the fanr value of finunciul isd ) using disc ed cash (law analysis
( (iii) Fuir valuc of finuncin) ussets and finuncial liabllities that ure not measured at fuir value (but fuir value disclosures are requircd)

The carmying values of linuncial ussels and lmbihities approximate the fair salues

Finsncial risk manugement

( I e Canpiony has in place u Risk management framescark Lo ideatly, cealunte business risks ind challenges across the Compuny both at corporate [evel as also separalely for ench husiness division These nsks
ielude market ok, eredit risk and Liquidty risk
‘e Companty mmimises U ellects of these risks by using decivatise liuancral 10 hedge nisk exp The use of dervative linanciol instruments and investinent of excess liquidity is govemed by the
y Caupany*s policies npproved by the Hourd of Dircetors, which provide written pruciples on the use of such instruments consistent with the Company's risk manngement stratcgy
{ Thie Company does ol enter mlo ar trade fnancial i mcludig derivative fi i for speculutive purposes
{
~ -
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Financial inutruments {contined)

363 Credit risk
Credit nisk refers to the sk (hat the counterparty wall default on 11s contructual ohligations resulung in linancial loss to the Company. The Company deals mugorly with creditssorthy counterpartics and obtwins
sullicient collaleral, where appropriate as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss (rom defiults Credit risk is manuged hy the Company through approved credit norms, cstablishing credit Iimits and
v momloring the iness of 10 which the Company pranls credit terms in the nonnal course of business On ucconnl of mdoplion of [ud AS 109, the Company uses expected credil loss
model 1o nssess the impomment loss Credit risk arises prncipally from the Company”s receivables from customurs: Credit risk on liquid funds is Timited because the counterpurtics are hanks. Refer note 11(ii) for the
disclosures Tor trude recervables
364 Lig

Tie Company mvests
manoges liguudity risk by mmntuining ndequate reserves, banking facilities ond r
s und habilines The company expects to meet its other obligations Iror opernting cash Mows und proce:

surplus funds Irom tme-to-time 1r various short-term instruments Seeunty of funds and liquidty shull be the primary consideration while deciding on the type of mvestments. The Company
facilities, by itorng forecast and actunl cash (lows and by matching the matunty profiles of financial
s of maturmg financial ussels

v risk tubles

Liyui
Ihe following lable below anulyses the Company's financial lialitics into relevant moturity gropings based on their maturilics for all non-derivative Ninancial liablitics that are net seitlsd.
The tables have been drawn on on nndiscounted basts basad on the curliest date on which the Compony eon he required Lo pay,

As a1 31 March 2024 A i 31 Murch 2023

Particuban

Sceured bank werdralUtenn loan facility, payahle

- i thsed 35827 33456
- amount unused 20,173 10,188
Secured gold on loan fucility, payuble

- amount uscd 40,220 2eM
= ) ) 4,780 Shiedd

ol |

Ihe following lahles detuls the Compiuny's remming contractunl matunty for s non~derivative financial liobihties with greed repoyment periods. The (ables huve been drawn on an undiscounted cash flows of
(inancial liabiitics bused on the carliest date on which the Company can be required to pov:

Contructusl maturitics of financial liehilities Less than 3 >3 mnnthy Total
E mmnithy
As ut
31 March 2024
Nan-deriyati
2 338

- Securits deposuts

- Borrowings 42718 16,714
- Trade pavahtes 25833 -
- Gold loan 17.260
~ Lease liabilitics 1,785
= Cher Gnancl leshnlities 2008
Trtal toederivative lishiiities H9.716
Contractual muturi Loy Vhieer 3 = 3 mainiths Tutal

months
Asat
31 March 2023
Non-derivutive
- Security deposils 19 343 62
- Barrowings 56,711 - 56,711
- Trade payables 18,394 912 19,306
- Gold loan 12,601 RA30 20,931
- [ euse hahihites 804 25538 26,342
= Othce Finmneeal sl 1662 2 1.6

|
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Financial Instruments (continued)
Markel risk
The mnrket nsks (0 which the Compuny 15 exposed are price risk and foreign currency risk

Price risk
The Compuny s exposed to fluctuntions in pold price (including fluctuations in foreign currency) arising on purchasef sale of gold

To manage the variabilily in cash flows, the Company cnters into derivative finoncial instrunmnis to manage the risk associaled withi gokd price uctuntions relating Lo all the highly probable foreeasted trunssctions
Such derivative financial instruments are primunly w the noture of fiature commodily soptracts and forward foreign exchange comdtsets. The risk management strategy ogninst gold price (uctuation olso wigludes
procuring gold on loan busis, with o flexibiity to fix price of gold ot any time durmg the tenor of the logn

The use of such derivalive financial instruments is governed by the Campany's policies approved by the Board of Direclors, which provide writlen principles on the use of such instrumenls consistent with (he
Company s risk management strategs

As the value of the dervative instrament generally changes in response (o the value of the hidged item, the cconomic relationship is established

Ihe follow ing lable gives details of contracts os at the end of the reporting vear:

Fair value hedges Sell future conlructs:

Aseruperate  Quantity of hedge

Particulars Nuture of Hedpe NomlInu} amount

(Per gram) Instruments (kgs)
3} March 2004 Fair wolue 6,77 m 13n
31 Murch 2023 e vahie $H39 155 e

Falr valuc hedge

The Compuny desigmstes derivative contracts us halging instruments to mitigete the risk of change in (i value of hedgal {8an due to movement in gold prives. Changes i the fuir value of hedging instauments nnd
hedged s thal ane devignated and qualify os fair vl hedges are recorded in the Statement of Profit and Loss Therefore, there will be na impuct of the Nuctwation in the price of the gold on the Company’s profit
for the period

[he table below shows the position of hedging instruments and hedged items os on the balunce sheet date:

As ot 31 March 2024:

Commodily price risk Carrving value of Meturity date Impact of fair Dischisure in balance sheet
Hedged item Hedging invtrument vl hedpe

Thedged them - xed gold Tia77 = T itk (a83) Iaventoncs

edlging instratmment - denvatives . (1) Upto 6 manths (1) Other finoncial ussets/ other linbihilies

Ax ut 30 March 0123 -

Cusnmdity price risk Currving value of Maturity date Impact of falr [Heedmsure in habinge sheet
Hedged lem Hedgiig instrusont value hedpe
- 3 manths 2 Inventories

g iten « Fvod pold e

Tledping instrument - derivatives - - Other financial assets/ other linbihues

Forelgn currency Hsk management

The Company 15 exposed to forcign exchange risk arising through its sales snd purchases denominnted in various loreign currencies

(i) The nsk management stralegy on foreign currency exchunge Muctation orising on account of puschuse/ sale of gold is covered above

ns denominnted in foreipn cwrrency, contaets are meusured ot fair value through the standalone statement of profit and loss.
s and monelary liabikitics et the end of the reporting year are as follows:

(1) I respect of normal purchase and sale transa
The carrying ainount of the Companys foreign currency denominated monetary u

Currency Lishilltics s sl Avits 2 af
31 March 2004 31 March 2023 30 March 3034 31 March 2023

Onststnding v LISE 3 7 59 53

[]mguunlnx 1 I 401 bl 4 DK 4374

Forcign curreney sensitivity analysis

pled belows

The Compuny is mninly expased (o UST) The Company's sensitivily o a 1% increase and decrease in the INR ogainst the relevant foreign curreneies i pres

e sensitrenty isilescs weludes only oulstundung foresgn iy denomimated monetary items nd udyusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change in foreign curtcuey rales | se in prolit or

equity by Rs 62 lakhs where the INR strengthens 1% agausd the relevant ourrency. For a 1% weakeniog of the INR agoinst the relevant currency, there would be a comparable decreuse

i munagement’s opinion, the sensits Ly aunlysis is anrepresentative of the inherent foreipn exchange sk because the exposure at the end of e reporting period docs not reflect the cxposure during the year

Interest rute risk

Intercst rote sk 15 the risk that changes an narket interest rates will lead (o changes w fuir vulue of finoncial instruments or changes n interest income, expense and cush Mows of the Company.

The Company is subject o variable interest nilés e some of its inkcresd hauring linbilincs. The Company’s intercst rate expasure is mainly related to dcht obligulions The Company also uscs o uix of uterest rate
sensitive et msiruments (o manage the lquidity and find for s day (o duv operntions like short tern louns.

As al 31 March 2024 und 2023, financiol labilitics of Rs 59,226 Lakhs and Rs 56,711 Lokhs, respectively, were subject to variable interest nites

The model asswnes that interest rute changes are instantuncous paratlel shifls 1n the yield curve: Although some ossets and liabilities nay have similar maturilics or periods 10 re-pricing, these may nol react
correspondingly to changes in markel ierest rales Also, the inlerest rates on some (ypes of assels and liabilities may Muclunte with changes in market inferest rates, while terest mics on other types ol assels may
change with o lug

“I'he risk estimates provided assume a parallel shiil of 100 basis points interest rate across all yicld curv This caleulation ulso assumes that the chusgs eccurs at the balance sheet date and has been calenluled based
on risk exposures outslamling us at thet date. The period end batances are not necessarily representative ol the average debl outstanding during the peried

sl rale, Uiere is a increnseflecrease of 592 lakhs in [inance cost
ng to be executed on capilal account and nol provided for is Rs 938 Jakhs (Previous year: Rs. 1,048 lakhs)

For 0 1% increase/decrease in mle:
mated amount of contracts ren
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38 Awsets aind labdtities of held fir wale

See acenunimg policy i Note 3(n)
Compauy runs i(s silver busmess under the brand nune "Shaya”. Revenue for the year ended 31 March 2024 is Rs 4,970 Lakhs nnd EBTTDA Tar the year ended 31 Murch 2024 15 Rs. {1,170} Lakhs

The Campany 1n the Bonrd meeting held ou 26 March 2024 received an n-principle spproval from the oard of Directors s lookme (or # suitable buyer 1o sell its Shaya business, Minagement expects the teansiction to be highy probable within
the next financial year

A, Assets and lisbilities of held for sale

Asal 31 March 2024, the disposal group was stated at lower of cosl or fir value Jess cost (o scll and comprised the following assets and bablities
Partlcular Amusung

Assets

Property, plant und Eguipment 166

Invenlone: 1472

Trade receivables 98

Advanee lo Supplier 0

At for wale 1 Kiw

=4

Liahilities :

Friks payublie 120

Liahifities bihi for sale 1m

B Cumulatlyc income ur expenses included in OCL

Iere are no curolative meone or expenses included in OCH relatng o the disposal group

C. Measurment of Fair Values

value ol gssels imd Jiahilnies held for sale his been catergorised as Level 3 far value

» I Rutios
Rutin Numerator [ 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 Reatoni
{a) Current ratia lotal current ussels [ Total current liahihties 098 102 %~
Dbt consists of harrowings
h) Debt-equity ratio and Lease liabilies (long. | Folal equity 622 376 65% | Reler note (a)
term und short tenn}
Net Profit afl
e xaluding eres | Finamee costs + Deincipal
() ebl service covern ynance cost encluding TS o ents during the 2053% 24 45% 16%|-
on Gold on 1.aan / (Finanee .
; veur
costs (excluding interest nu
Gold on Loan)
(d) Retum on equity mitio Trolfitaller (ax Avernpe total equity 132.78% 60 59% T118%| Refer note (b)
(¢) Inventory lumover ralio Casl of poods sold Average [nventnry 216 197 10% =
(1) Trade recervubles lumover ratio | Revenne from operations :\‘C”' :I""d” 105.93 7621 39% [Refer nate (¢)
4yl s
() Tradde payables tumover ratin Derved purehises Average (rde pavables 985 975 1%].
(1) Net copital tumover ratio Resenue drom operations Working eapital (103 88) 109.40 <193% Relier nole ()
(i) Nt profin ratio Profit afler tay Revenue rom operations 330% 475% “31%| Refer note (¢)
Capital cmployed =
Praiit before tax and (inance | Fangible Net Worth +
Return on vpital employed I 2% 18% 12%}.
(i eturmoR T IaTemE cost Tolal Debt + Deferred ” b
Tax Liahilits

constetn pf indcrest on borrowings and imiterest on Jease Btk

® Tt oL A

Nntes:

(i) ebl-cyity ratio his mereased owing 1o mereas
{h) Return on eqints rtio his inereased from previaus vear die ta one time adjusument 1o re inied caming awing (o conversion of 1.SOP plan

(€} Trnde recervables tumover ratio has mereised due 1o in revenue 0 the eurrent year by 42% with decrease in Irade recervahle by 15%

(d) Net capital wmoser rutio bas reduced dunng the year due o reduetion 1m workmg capital by 206% due ta mercase barrowmg and payables iand inct
(¢) Net prafi ratio has decreused us prafil before d in propartion ta increase in revenue of 42%

(1) Company doesit't have: any insestments, heuce retin on sesinent is nat provided

1 horrowing i the curment vear campared Lo presious year and one e adjusinent lo relained camung owmg Lo vonsersion of [ NOP plan

it revemie by 42% when compured to previous year

N lus 1ot iner

40 Capital manueement
“Ine Company’s pelicy 10 muintam o slable and strong capital structure witl a focus on Iotal equity so us 1o mantain investors, ereditors and market confidence ond to suslamn fintnre development and growth of its
business. In order o mamtan the capital struclure, the Compimy monilors the relum on capital, as well as level of dividends to equity shareholders. The Company aims 1o natage ils capifu] eflicieney so s o
ward it abrkily 10 continue as a going concern and (o ophinize reiums to all ils sharcholders IFor the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes ixsued capital and all other equity reserves and
debl s meluded us a part o borrow mgs nnd gold loan
Aval Aval
Panlesters 31 Sarch 2024 30 March 2023
Total debt * 59226 56,711
Tookul wquity 13,179 22,070
[ 10 ey v pi. 257
“Jatad debt imcludes only borrowings. Gold on loan and lease Tiabwhiies hus not been considered for Ui purpose of above
41 Other statutary infermution :
() Thie Company does aat have any: Henani property or uny proceeding which 1s pendmg ngainst the Caipany for holdmg any enami property
(1) Thie Comuipany do ol v min trmsan s widli sampanies struck ofl
() The Compans do not Tave any ehargas of saliscion which s set o be repistered with Registrar of Companies heyoud (he statutory period
(iv) Tl Cesmpany has not tnsdad ar tvested s enpti curreney ot vinual currency during the (inamcial year.
(%) T Cowniguany 15 nol sified as willlul defoulter,
(vi) The Leripery-doesn't huve any Iransaction which 15 nof recorded i the hooks ol accounts that lias been surrendered or disclosed as meome durig the year in the lx assessments under the lucome Tax Act, 1461
such is search or suney
i) Mo fude bave been odvaned or loaned or mvested (eithet from boramne furds o duse premium or any nther sonrces of kind of furmbs) b e Couipany 1o or W any other person(s) or entily(is), including foreign
ctilies { Tterusabiangs”), with the nnderstimding, whscher tooordal i wriling or othanis, that the Intennediary shall, dircetly or indirectly bumd o mvest in other persans or entities identilied i any manner
whatioyer by or o behali of the Company (“Ulumale emseticiries™) o provide m gairanios, sccurily or the like on beholf ol the Ultirnnte Menelicumics.
sy No unds T beer received by the Company from any persan(s) or entity(is), includug loreign entities (*Funding arties™), wath the isidstatanding, whether recorded i writing ar vtherstse, thal the Compuny
shall, diceetly or indireety, lend or investin other persons or entities identihied in any mamer whatsoever hy or on behall of the Fundmeg Parfy “4ifumate Denelictaries™) or provide any gunrantee, seeunty or the like
on behall of the Ullimate Benefictanes
(1n) The Company bis it revalued its property, plant and cguigisent (includimg nght 1o use asset) or imangihle axsels o both durmg (he current or previaus year
(%) TThe Company Tres complicd wilh the number of livers presrrhad vider the Companies Act, 2013
(i) The Company has nol entered inte any scheme of arrangeinent which has an accounting mpact m the eurrent or previous financial year.
42 Disclosure under section 1R6 of the Companics Act, 2013
Investment Inyestment soll/
Name of (he entity Nature of relationship Purpine At mude during the  impaired during the Avet
° 1 April 2023 31 March 2024
Aear Ave
Tvestmenss
Inves W eqiiy s s g )
Studio€ e USA Subadiary Stratepe 109 - - (L]
iy extment
) ) AR Imntlvchl . ln\'mmcmAm.hJ/ e
Nami uf the entily Nature of relationship Purpose | April 2022 msde during the  impaired during the 30 Murch 2023
Avar AEnr
Tuvesnments
Juvesturent 1w comity msamens funguoted)
StudioC e USA Subshdury Butcpn ny - - {LE]

imvesdine
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Disclasure under sectlon 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Contd)

Letier of Financial Support to StudioC Ine, USA

AS per our report of even dale attached

for BSR & Co. LLP for and on behelf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
Vv regastratiof musiihar 1001 248W/ W ool (CIN: LIS 303 TNNNTITCUR IR 30)
4

, Aoy
Arfun Ramah Avnbh Anamid
Pisrmier Managing Director
Masnherbip Nf L18495 DIN: 10359814
Tnce | emgaly Place. Mumbai
Date: 25 April 2024 Il 25 April 2024

=== Chief Financial Offcer

Pluce: Bengaluru

Pt 28 Apaul 2004

(
o

Kemar Sonthalla
DIN: 0% $9453

Place: Bengaluru
Dale: 25 April 2024

_ Nameofihe iy Nature of relutionship ~ Secured/ unsecured Purpose Rate of Interest Term i A::I.; i Given during theyear  Reinstatement of Loan R‘:::::‘""“ S nt?:‘: i
T
5 years from the
StudioC Ine. USA Subsidiary Unsecured Business support 8% date of 1,998 2817 45 4,861
disbursement
Name af the enilty Nature of relationship  Secured/ unsecured Purpose Rate of Interest Term ' :r’““;m Glven during the yoar  Relnstatement of Loun RE:;T:.“'"“ 3 !I::::IM
Toans
2 years [rom Lhe
StudioC In. USA Subsidiary [ Business support 8% dote of 27 1727 4 1,998
disbursement
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BSR&Co.LLP Pebble Beach, B Block, 3rd Floor

No. 13/2, off Intermediate Ring Road
Chartered Accountants Bengaluru - 560 071, India

Telephone: +91 80 4682 3000
Fax: +91 80 4682 3999

| Independent Auditor SRepart

To the Members of CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its subsidiary together
referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2024, and the
consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of report of the other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as
was audited by the other auditor, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs
of the Group as at 31 March 2024, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us
along with the consideration of report of the other auditor referred to in paragraph (a) of the "Other Matters”
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. J

Management's and Board of Directors’' Responsibilities for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The Holding Company’'s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit/ loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the consolidated financial slatements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation

Regstered Office:
B S R & Co. (s partnarship firm with Registration No. BAB1223) comverted inlo 85 R & Co, LLP (& 14th Floor, Central B Wing and Narth C Wing, Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco
Limiled Liability Partnership with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) wilh effect from October 14, 2013 Cenler, Westemn Express Highway, Goregaon (Easl), Mumbai - 400063
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

CaratlLane Trading Private Limited

of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the
respective Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entity or
business activity within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements
of such entity included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entity included in the consolidated financial statements, which has been
audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our
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responsibilities in this regard are further described in paragraph (a) of the section titled “"Other Matters”
in this audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matter(s)

a. We did not audit the financial statements of one subsidiary, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.2,263 lakhs as at 31 March 2024, total revenues
(before consolidation adjustments) of Rs.6,536 lakhs and net cash flows (before consolidation
adjustments) amounting to Rs.94 lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements has been audited by other auditor
whose report have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates
to the aforesaid subsidiary is based solely on the report of the other auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work
done and the report of the other auditor.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the
other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as was audited by other auditor,
as noted in the "Other Matters” paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the report of the other auditor except for the matter stated in the paragraph 2B(f)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 1 April 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, none of
the directors of the Holding Company is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
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as a director in terms of Section 1 64 (2) of the Act.

are as stated in the 2A(b) above on reporting under Section 1 43(3)(b) and Pparagraph 2B(f) below
on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure B".

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other
auditor on separate financial statements of the Subsidiary, as noted in the “Other Matters” paragraph:

a.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March
2024 on the consolidated financial position of the Group. Refer Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts during the year ended 31 March 2024,

There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended 31 March 2024,

d (i) The management of the Holding Company whose financial statements have been audited under

the Act have represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the
Note 40(vii) to the consolidated financial stalements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Holding Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Note 40(viii) to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding
Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing ar otherwise, that the Holding Company shall directly
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (1) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (i) above,
contain any material misstatement,

The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company has used accounting
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year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software and we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our audit.

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

R.

un Ramesh

Partner

Place: Bengalury Membership No.: 218495
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:242184953KFTKJ2744

Page 5 of 8



BSR&Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended
31 March 2024

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(xxi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, there
are no companies included in the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company
which are companies incorporated in India except the Holding Company. The Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 of the Holding Company did not include any unfavourable
answers or gqualifications or adverse remarks. '

ForBSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

L.

Arjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24218495BKFTKJ2744
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have
audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company , as
of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March 2024, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of such internal controls
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Holding Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the consolidated financial
statements of CaratLane Trading Private Limited for the year ended 31 March
2024 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controis with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

g

rjun Ramesh

Partner
Place: Bengaluru Membership No.: 218495
Date: 25 April 2024 ICAI UDIN:24218495BKFTKJ2744
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CnratLane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheel
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Arjun Ramesh

Turiner e,
Membership No. 218495 ,l:‘,l'“ B 4 f,);:.‘“e
Place; Benpaluru o “"“";'"_'\

ol

i » 11

Date 25 April 2024

Managing Dircctor
DIN: 10359814
Place: Mumbai
ate: 25 April 2024

Manoj Bhanawat “

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 Apnl 2024

Particulars Note As at As al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propenty, plant and equipment 5(i) 8,739 7,941
Capital work-in-progress * 5@ty 68 0
Right-of-use assets 6 24,680 20,153
Intangible assets 5(ii) 3,330 2,945
Intangible assets under development 5(iv) 332 98
Financial assets
i, Other financial assets () 9,712 6,876
Deferred tax assels (net) 8 3,292 1,403
Other tax assets (net) 8 1,016 215
Other non-current assets 9 6,583 3,139
Total non current assets 57,752 42,770
Current assets
Inventaries 10 104,028 90,785
Financinl assets
i. Trade receivables 11(1) 668 1,317
it Cash and cash equivalenls 11(ii) 2,195 681
i Other bank balance 110i) 504 178
iv. Loan receivables 1iGiv) 128 523
v Other financial assets 11{v) 5,979 3,943
(Otlier current assels 12 14,066 12,984
Tatal current assets 127,568 110411
Assets held for sale 38 1,806 -
Total assets 187,126 153.181
FEQ!IIT\' AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 667 667
Share application money - 1
Other equity 14 9,174 18,334
Total equity 9.841 19,002
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i Borrowings 15(i) 13,036 -
ila Lease liabilities 15(ii) 30,817 23,099
iti. Other financial liabilities 15(ii) 840 362
(hher non-current liabilities 16 145 87
Provisions 17 1,137 693
Totul non current liabilities 45,975 24.241
Current liabilities
Financial linbilines
i, Borrowings 18(i) 46,190 56,712
ii. Gold on loan 18(ii) 40,220 20,931
inna. Lease liabililies 18(iii) 4,506 3,363
iv. Trade payables 18(iv)
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 3414 3466
(b) Total outstamlimg dues of credilors other than micro 22,800 16,089
and small enterprises
v, Other financial liabilities 18(v) 2,843 1,689
Other current liabilities 19 10,172 6,924
Provisions 20 1,045 764
Tutal current liabilities 131,190 109,938
Linbilities held for sale 38 120 -
‘Total linbilities 187,126 153,181
*Represents amounts less than Rs. 50,000
Matenal accounting policies 3 -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements
As per our report of even dale attached
for BS R & Co. LLP for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Acconntants CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED C
Firm registration pumber. 101248W/ W-100022 (CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)
“  Avnish Anand Ashok Kumar Sonthalia

Director

DIN: 03259683
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 April 2024
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountanis
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

K.

Arjun Ra
Partner
Membership No. 218495
Place: Bengaluru
Date: 25 April 2024

Avnish Anand

DIN: 10359814
Place: Mumbai

Managing Director

Date: 25 April 2024

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U52393TN2007PTC064830)

Sids v

Manoj Bhanawat

Place: Bengaturu

~i

Chief Financial Officer

Date: 25 April 2024

Particul

articutars Note 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations 21 308,094 216,881
Other income 22 2.542 1,908
Total income (1) 310,636 218,789
Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 23 (a) 201,345 160,642
Purchase of stock-in-trade 23 (b) 24,359 16,593
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 5 (17,990) (36,783)
work-in-progress 3(9)

Employee benefits expense 24 17,035 13,543
Finance costs 25 8,117 4,661
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 8,403 4,561
Other expenses 27 57.975 43.637
Total expenses (IT) 299,244 206,854
Profit before tax (111) [(I)-(11)] 11,392 11,935
Tax expense (1V)

- Current tax 3 4
- Deferred tax 8 3,530 3,723
Profit for the year (A) [(IL1)-(IV)] 7,859 8,208
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement

of profit and loss:

- Remeasurements of employee defined benefit plans (376) (107)
- Income-tax on above 95 27
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (55) (105)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (B) (336) (185)
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 7,523 8,023

Earnings per equity share (par value of Rs. 2 per share)

Basic eamnings per share (Rs.) 28 23.57 24.65
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) 28 23.34 24.49
Material accounting policies 3

shok Kumar Sonthalia
frector

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
C Helated st of cl
(All ainounts in INR lakhs, urless otherwise staled)

in equity

A. Equity share capital

*Represents amounts less than Rs.50,000

B. Other equity

Particulars Amount
Balance at the L April 2022 665
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2
As at 31 March 2023 667
(Changes in equity share capital during the year * 0
As at 31 March 2024 667

Material accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

fur BS R & Co. LLP
(hariered Accountants
Firm registratigh number: 101248W/ W-100022

Arjun Ramesh
Parier
Membership Wi 218495
Muce: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
(CIN: U52393TN2007PTCOG4830)

Avnish Anand
Managing Director
DIN: 10359814
Place: Mumbai

1 25 April 202

Manoj Bhanawat
Chief Financial Officer
Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024

Ressries and wirplus Other comprehensive income
Particulars - . Stock options Retained . ot
Securities premium outstanding account carnings Foreign Currency Re—measuremeljl of.
Translation Reserve | defined benefit obligation
Bulance at the April 1, 2022 40,978 851 (31,461) 13 (244) 10,137
Premium on shares issued during the year 163 (100) = % = 62
Profit for the year - - 8,208 - - 8,208
Emiployee stock option expense - 113 - - - 113
Other i ive income for the year [net of taxes) - - - (105) {80) (185)
Total comprehensive income for the year 8,208 (105) {80} 84123
Balance as at March 31, 2023 41,141 864 (23,253) (92) (326) 18,334
Balance as at April 1, 2023 41,141 864 (23,253) (92) (326) 18,334
Premium on shares issued during the year 1 = . - 1
Profit for the year - - 7.859 - - 7,859
Modification of ESOP Plan (Refer Note 13) - (857) (15.827) - - (16,683)
Share Options exercised 7 ()] - - - 0)
Employee stock option expense - - - - - -
Oiher comprehensive income for the year (net of taxes) - - - (55) (281) (336)
Total comprehensive income for the year (7,968) (281) (8,249)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 41,149 - (31.221) (147)] (607) 9.174
3

Ashik Kumar Sonthalia
Directar

DIN: 03259683

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 25 April 2024




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flow
(Al amounts in INR 1akhs, unless othervvise siated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 11(ii))

Profit before tax 11,392 11,935
Adfusiments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 8,403 4,561
Interest income (10) (6)
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost (692) (553)
Deferred rental income and rent equalisation (181) (186)
Termination gain (388) -
Gain on sale of investment (net) (53) (3)
Finance cost 8,117 4,661
(Profit)/l.oss on sale of property, plant and equipment (100) (38)
Property, plant and equipment written oft 24 -
Intangible assets wrtitten ofl’ 3 20
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (55) -
Employee stock option expense (18) 113
Operating profit before working capital changes 26,442 20,504
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(increase)/ decrease in inventories (14,715) (36,845)
(increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 551 (260)
{increase)/ decrease in loans receivable, other financial asset and other assets (6,417) (9,722)
increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities 743 570
increase/ (decrease) in provisions 349 323
increase/ (decrease) in gold on loan and trade payable 26,068 (430)
lincrease/ (decrease) in other liabilities 3,228 2.602
Cash genercated from/(used in) operating activities before taxes 36,249 (23.258)
Income taxes paid (Net of refunds) (801) (100)
Net cash from/(outflow) from operating activities (A) 35,448 (23,358
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and intangible assets under (6,623) (8911)
development
Proceeds from sale of probeny, plant and equipment 1,017 241
Purchase/ssle of mutual fund investments, net 53
Security deposits placed during the year (326)
Interest received 283 728
Lease payments received from sub-leascs 1.649 1.086
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (3,347) (6.856)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards lease liabilities (principal) (4,981) (5.080)
Payment towards lease liabilities (interest) (3,011) -
Proceeds from long term borrowings 17.317 -
Repayment of long term borrowings (1,024) (657)
(Repayment of)/ proceeds from short term borrowings, net (13,778) 38,996
Interest paid (5,028) (3,021)
Cash settled options (Refer note 13) (net of taxes) (20,083) -
Proceed from issue of equity shares ) 63
Net cash genersted (used)/from financing activities (C) (30,587) 30,303
Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,514 89
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year (Refer note 1 1(ii)) 681 592
2,195 681




V.

CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flow
(All amounts in INR lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with Ind AS 7
Borrowings

Opening balance 56,711 18,372

Repayment from borrowings (577,801) (366,643)
Proceeds from borrowings 580.316 404,984

Closing balance 59,226 56,711

Reconciliation of Lease liability

Opening balance 26,462 12,142

Payments made during the year (7,992) (5,080)
Non-cush changes 16.853 19,400

Closing balance 35,323 26,462

Material accounting policies

As per our report of even date attached

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 101248W/ W-100022

L.

Arjun Ram

Partner

Membership No. 218495
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Material accounting policies and notes to the C lidated fi ial stat 1
I BACKGROUND

CaratLane Trading Private Limited (the Company) is domiciled and incorporated in India under the provision of the Companies Act, 2013, The Company and its subsidiary
(collectively, the “Group™). The Group is engaged in activities of Manufacturing and trading of jewellery, The registered office address of the Company is 27, Anna Salai, Pathari
Road Thousand Lights, Chennai TN 600006.

The Board of Directors approved the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 and authorised for issue on 25 April 2024,

"

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION

(i) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act) and other relevant provision of the act under going
concern asssumption using the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values notified under the Act & Rules
prescribed thereunder. (together hereinafter referred to as ‘consolidated Financial Statements’ or ‘financial statements’)

(ii) Basis of measurement

The Consolidated fi ial 1ts have been prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost convention except for the following items:
a. Certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value

b. Share based payments that are measured at fair value

¢. Net defined benefit liability that are measured at fair value of present value of defined benefit obligations

d. Right of use assets and lease liabilities are measured at fair value as per INDAS 116

e. Security deposits are measured at fair value as per INDAS 109

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

(iii) Use of esti ptions and judg
The preparation of Consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS Tequires nent to make judg ts, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies on the reported amount of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities. Such estimates, ptions and judg t are

based on management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of financial statements. The actual result may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the Consolidated financial statements is
included in the following notes:

- Note 30 — Leases — whether an arrangement contains a lease

- Note 30 — Lease classification (including the expected general inflation rates)

- Note 21 - Revenue Recognilion

"-Note 5(iv)- Intangible assets under development

Assumptions and estimation

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2024 is included in the
following notes:

- Note 5 (i) — Useful life of the Property, plant and equipment;

- Note 5 (ii) — Useful life of the Intangible assets;

- Note 35 — Contingent liabilities and commitments;

- Notes 31 - Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;
- Note 30 — Leases - Lease term and incremental borrowing rate

- Note 36 — Fair value measurement of financial instruments

- Note 21 - Revenue recognition

- Note 20 (a) - Provision for warranty

- Note 33 - Right to recover retumed goods and Liability for sales return

-Note 11(b)- Expected credit loss

-Note 8- Deferred tax- recognition and valuation

- Note 19 - Provision for Xclusive points

(iv) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the Consolidated financial statements of the group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group operates (1.e. the
“functional currency”). The Consolidated fi ial ts are presented in Indian Rupee ("Rs." or "INR"), which is the group’s functional and presentation currency and is rounded:

off to the nearest lakhs except when otherwise indicated.

(v) Measurement of fair values

Certuin accounting policies and disclosures of the group require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Group has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values and the valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

~Level 1: quoted prices (wmadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obiservable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a linbility, the Group uses observable market data as far as possible.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into a different levels of the fair vitlue hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categerised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Further information about the assumptions made in the measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

- Note 36 - financial instruments.
(vi) Basis of consolidation

‘The consolidated financial statements relate to CaratLane Trading Private Limited and entities controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Company has power over the
entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and has the ability to affect the entity's returns by using its power over the entity.

The standalone financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary have been combined on a line by line basis by adding together the book values of like items of asscts, linbilities,
income and expenses, after fully eliminating intra-group balances, intra-group transactions and unrealised profit or losses. These financial statements are prepared by applying upr
accounting policies in use at the Group.

Entities controlled by the Company are consolidated from the date the control commences until the date control ceases. @ ||rr
The subsidiary company which are included in the consolidation and the Company’s holdings is StudioC Inc., the subsidiary is incorporated in the United states of Am iCiand
ownership interest of the Company is 100% (Previous year:100%)

The financial statements of the subsidiary company which is included in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of the Company i.e. 31 March 205
finansial statements of the subsidiary included in consolidation are audited by other auditors

(v) Current and Non Current classification

Based on tle time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has identified twelve months as
cycle for determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the Balance sheet. Balances that are realisabe/ payable within a period 12 months fr
as current and beyond 12 months is considered as non-current
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3 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Consolidated Financial Statements unless otherwise indicated.

(i) Revenue recognition
Revenue is fecognized upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those goods or services.

Sale of products :
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control.is transferied to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, net of customer incentives, discounts, variable considerations, payments made to customels, other
similar charges, as specified in the contract with the customer. Additionally, revenue excludes taxes collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to govemnmental
authoritics. Invoices are usually payable within 120-180 days, except for cash and carry business.

For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognized to the extent that is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur.

Therefore, the amount of revenue recognized is adjusted for expected returns, which are estimated based on the historical data, In these circumstances, a refund liability and a right to
recover returned goods assets are recognized. The right to recover returned goods asset is measured after reducing the average gross margin from the estimated refund liability. The
refund liability is included in other current linbility (note 19) and right to recover retumed goods is included in other current assets (note 12). The Company 1eviews its estimate of
expected retums at each reporting date and updates the amounts of the assets and liability accordingly.

Advances received for services are reported as liabilities unti! all conditions for revenue recognilion are met.

The Company.allocates a portion of the consideration received to “Xclusive points'. This allocation of the material right to the custome: is based on the historical data for redemption
of these Xclusive points. The amount allocated to the xelsuive points is deferred and is recognized as revenue’ when Xclusive points are redeemed or the likelihood of the customer
redeeming the xclusive points become remote. The deferred revenue is included in other current liabilities.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition.

« The Group's contracts with customers could include promises to transfer multiple goods to a customer. The Group assesses the goods promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. |dentifieation of distinct perfonmance obligation involves judement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to benefit
independently from such deliverables. ' ' o

« Judgement is also required to determine the iransaction price for thie contract. The transiction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration
with clements such as volume discounts, performance bonuscs, price cancessions and incentives. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contraet includes & significant fi I P Any consideration payable 1o the ¢ is adjusted to the ion price, unless it is a payment for o distinet good from the
The esti d t of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the pmount of

cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period

« The Group uses judgement to determing an appropriate Consolidated selling price for a performance obligation, The Group allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of ench distinet good or service promised in the cantract. Where Consolidated selling price is not observable, the Group
uses the expected cost plus margin approach to allocate the transaction price to each distinet performance obligation.

Refer Note - 2! Revenue from operations

Interest income is recopnized as it accrues in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss using effective interest rale method,
Commission income is generally recognized when the related sale is executed as per the terms of the agreement.

The Group has determined that the revenues as disclosed in Note 21 are disaggregated into categories that depict how the nature, amount. timing and uncertainty of 1evenue and cash
flows are affected by economic factors,

(a) Other income

Franchisee Signing Fees :Franchisee signining fees is recognised based on the franchisee stores opened during the year which varies based on the location. It excludes laxes remitted
to the govermen! which are receovered from the Franchisee's. (Note 22)

(ii) Property, plant and equipment

The cost of any item of PPE shall be recogaised as an asset if an only if it is probable that future economic benefit associated with the item will flow to the group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

ltems of Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impatrment losses, if any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price/ acquisition cost, net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than
those subsequently recovernble from the tax autherities), any direetly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses and interest on
borrawings atiributahile to acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipment up to the date the asset is ready [or its intended use.

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment after its purchase / completion is capitalized only if such expenditure results in an increase in the future benefits fiom such
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Advance paid towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital advances under non-current assets.

Any gain or loss on dispesal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit or loss. Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of
assets that are not ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Repairs and
maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

The Group identifies and determines cost of each component/ part of property, plant and equipment separately, if the component/ part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of
the property, plant and equipment and has useful life that is materially different from that of the remaining asset. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the estimated useful life
of the asset or the lease period whichever is less,

A item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derccognised upon disposal or when no future economie benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Gains or losses arising from de-recognition ol Property; plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured as the difference berween the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of Property, plant and equip and are ized in the Consolidated statement of prafit and loss when the Property, plant and equipment is derccognized
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(i) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful life and iesidual value
Depreciation is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost over the useful lives of assets which is as follows:

Asset category Management e.stimate of Useful life as per
useful life schedule 11
Fumiture and fittings 10 years 10 years
Computer equipment 3 years 3 years
Coemputer server 6 years 6 years
Office equipments 5 years 5 years
Jewellery Machine 15 years 15 years
Vehicles 5 years 8§ years
Mock jewellery 1 year | year
Leasehold improvements - Stores 4 years Lease period
8 years or lease period whichever

Leasehold improvements = Other than stores il Lease period
is less

Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionally charged.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
Rased on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management
expects to use these assets. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortization petiod or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

(iii) Intangible assets
(a) Internally generated : Rescarch and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in the statement of profit and lass as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset only if the ¢xp Jiture can be d reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the assel. Otherwise, it
is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

(b) Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using the straight- line method. and is included
in depreciation and amortization in Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Useful life

Computer software 3 years

Caratlane portal 3 yvars

Amortization method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjusted prosy ively, if appropriate.

(iv) Impairment

(») Financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not fair valued through the statement of profit and loss. Expected
credit Tass is the difference between the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expects 10 reczive, discounted using the effective interest rate, Loss allowanee for
rade receivables is mensured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial asscts. expected credit losses are measured at an amount equtal o the 12-month ECL, unless
there has been a significant increase in eredit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured ar lifetime ECL, as required. The amount of expected credit losses {or
reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when:

sthe debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or
«the financial asset is more than 90 days past due

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credil-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental price on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

i. significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

ii. a breach of contract such as default or being more than 90 days past due;

iii. it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganistaion; or
iv. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

(b) Non-financial assets

Intangible assets, Intangible assets under development and property, plant and equipment

Al gach reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its Non financia! assets to detenmine whether there is any indication of impai t 1 ible assets, Intang
assets under development and property, plant and equip are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that ther carmying amounts may nol
be recoverable, For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (ve. the higher of the fair value less cost o sell and the value-in -use) is determined on an individual
assel basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are fargely independent of (hose from other assets, Value:in use is based on estimated future cash (lows, discounted 1o
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. Tn such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. If such assets are considered 1o be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset. An impairment loss 15 reversed in the statement of
profit and loss if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverble amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised recoverable amount,
provided that this amount docs not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been

recognized for the assel in prior years.
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{v) Leases

Group as a lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration, To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an i1dentified asset, the Group assesses whether:

a, the contract involves the use of an identified asset;

b. the Group has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the assct throughout the period of usc, and

¢. the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Gioup allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone prices of the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components

The Group recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured
at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of the costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the
underlying asset or site on which it is located.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

The right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-tine method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated
useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any
indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the cf 1 date, di ted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or,
if that rate cannot be readily determined, the incremental borrowing rate applicable to the entity within the Group. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing ratc as the
discount rate, For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Group, on a lease by leasc basis, may adopt cither the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the
incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio as a whole. Incremental borrowing rate used for discounting has been determined by taking the interest rales obtained from financial
inatitutions for barrowing the similar value of nght of use assets for simiiar tenure, The rates will be reassessed on a yearly basis at the beginning of each accounting period to reflect
changes in financial conditions. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease paymems, residual value guarantees, excroise price of a purchase option where the
Group is re y certuin 1o ise that option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the Tease tem reflects the lessee exercising an option 1o terminate the lease.
The Group kas elected not to recopnise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of #ll assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognizes the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-ling basis over the lease term

Gioup as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor at the inception, it determines whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease.

The Group mecognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognised
over the lease term based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease. When the Group is an intermediate lessor it accounts for
its interests in the head lease and ihe sub-lease separately, It assesses the lease classification of a sub-lease witl referenice 1o the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with
ieference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is a short -term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease

If an arrangement contains a lease and non-lease components, the Group applies Ind AS 115-Revenue to allocate the consideration in the contract.

(vi) Non-current assets or assets and liabilities held for sale :

Non-current assets, or assets and liabilities held for sale, are classified as held for sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than thvough
continuing use.

Such assets, ot disposal groups, are generally measurcd at the lower of their carying value and fair value less costs to sell.

Onee classified as held for sale, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, investment properties are no longer amortised or depreciated.

Non-current asseis classified as hield-for-sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in balunce sheet. The liabilities
of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separalely from other liabilities in the balance sheet

(vii} Inventories
Inventories [other than quantitics of gold for which the price is yet to be determined with the supplicts (Unfixed Gold)] are imeasured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The

cost is determined as follows:

(i) Raw miaterials are valued at weighted average except solitaires which are valued at the cost of purchase,
(ii) Work-in-progress and finished goods (other than gold) are valued at weighted average cost of production.
(ii) Traded goods are valued at weighted average / cost of purchase.

{iv) Gold is valued on first-in-first-out basis.

(v} Gold hedged through gold on loan and futures contract are revalued at fair value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase including duties and taxes (other than these subsequently recoverable by the Group), freight inwards and other expenditure directly attributable to

acquisition, Wark-in-progress and finished goods include appropriute proportion of overheads.
Unfixed gold is initially valued at the provisional goid price prevailing on the date of receipt of gold and revalued at the gold price prevailing at the end of each reporting period..
Net realizable value represent the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

(viii) Foreign curreacy transactions and balances
Foreign exchange transactions are recorded at the rates of excliange prevailing on the dates of the respective transaclions, Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange

transactions setiled during the year are recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in toreign curencies as at the Consolidated balance sheet date are tanslaled at the exchange rates on that date. The resultant exchange
differences are recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss

Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated at an exchange rate that approximates the rates

prevalent on the date of the transaction.
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(ix) Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax are 1ecognized m Consolidated
statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are
also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

a) Current income tax: Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on the
taxable income {or that year. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the batance sheet date. The Group offsets
current tax assels and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

b) Deferred income tax: Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized using the balanee sheet approach. Deferred tax is recognized an temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their cairying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the deferred income fax anses from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.
The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profir will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Defetred income tax assets are recognized for carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that there is convincing
evidence that taxable profit will be available against which the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
to taxable mcome in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and

liabilities is recognized as an income or expense in the period that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date
)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax refects the tax consequences that will follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilitics and the deferred taxes relate to the
same tax authority and same taxable entity.

{xi} Employce benefits .
i} Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, short-term compensated absences
and incentives etc., are recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year in which the employee renders the related service.

ii) Defined contribution plan

All eligible employees receive benefit from provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Group make monthly contribution to the fund, which is
equal to a specified percentage of the covered employee's basic salary and including other fixed component not linked to the performance of employees. The Group has no further
obligations under this plan beyond its monthly contributions.

iii) Post employment benefits

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all eligible employees. The present value of obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined baged on
actuarial valuation carried st the year-cnd using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise 10 additional unit of employes benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final abligation. The ol ligation is mes d at the p value of the estimated future cash flows, The discount rate used
for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the balance sheet date having maturity
periods approximating the term of the refated obligation. The Group recognizes the net abligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset of liahility. Gains and losses
througly re-measurements of the net defined benefit Jiability / (asset) are recognized in other comprehensive income. In accordance with Ind AS, re-measurement gains and lossts on
defined benefit plans recognized in OCI are not 1o be subsequently reclassified to Consolidated statement of profit and loss. As required under Ind AS compliant Schedule 11, the
Group transfers it immediately to retained earnings.

The plan provides a lump-sum payment to eligible employees at retirement or on termination of employment based on the salary of the respective employee and the years of
employment with the Group. The gratuity liability is accrued based on an actuarial valuation at the balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

iv) Compensated absences
Compensated alisences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as an
actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date using the projected unit credit method.

(xii) Employee stack option expense
The Giroup meisures compensation cost relating to share-based payments using the fair valuation method in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-Based Payment. Compensation

expense is amortized over the vesting period of the option on a siraight-line basis over the requisite service period for each separately vesting portiou of the award as if the award was
in-substance, multiple awards

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model. The expected term of an option is
estimated based on the vesting term and contractual life of the option. Expected volatility during the expected term of the option is based on the historical volatility of similar
companies. Risk free interest rates are based on the government securities yield in effect at the time of the grant.

The cost of equity settled transactions is recognized, tagether with a corresponding i in share opti ling account in equity, over the period in which the perfonmance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-setiled transactions at cach reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest, The income statement expense ot credit for a period represents
the movement in cumulative exy wnized o5 at the beginning and end of that period and is recognized in employee benefits expense. The dilutive effeet of outstanding ophions
is reflected as additionnl share dilution in the putation of diluted ings per share.

On 13 December 2023, the Board of Directors had approved the conversion of the exisitng ESOP plan lo cash settled plan and approved cash settlement of outstanding Vesled and
unexercised Options to all eligible employees/ ex- employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options. The difference between the fair value of options as on grant
date and fair value of options as on date of conversion is debited to ‘other equity'.

The fair value of the amount payable to employees in respect of options which are settled in cash, is recognized as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding liabilities, over
the period during which the employees become unconditionlly entitled to payment. The liability is measured at each reporting date and at seltlement date based on the fair value of
options, Any change in the Tability are recognized in profit or loss.




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Material accounting ﬂnlicics und notes to the Consolidated financial statements
—

(xiii) Financial instruments
Recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments

Financial assets and liabililies are initially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to financial assets and liabilities [other than financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)] are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or liabilities, as appropriate on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to acquisition of financial assets or liabilities measured at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value, depending on the classification of financial assets.

A) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified at

(i) Amortized cost

(ii) Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

(iti) Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Group changes its busi model for ping f ial assets.

(i) Financial assets carried ar amortized cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss .

B) Financial liabilities: classification, subsequent measurement and derecognition:

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date,
the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss

A financial liabilities which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently carried at fair value through profit or loss .

Derecognition

Financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the right to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains cither all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

Finencial labiitics
The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecogniies a financial linbility when its terms are

madified and the ¢ash flows under the lified terms are sub jally different. In this case, a new financial hability based on the modified terms is recognized at fuir value, The
difference between the carrying of the fi ial liability extinguished and a new financial linbility with modified terms is gnized in the Consolidated t of profit
and loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Consolidated balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable
Tight to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(xiv) Derivative financial instruments

a. Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in statement of profit and loss immediately, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. Hedge accouuting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedge relationship, the hedging
instrument or hedged item expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised or no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,

The Group applies fiir value hedge for the gold purchased whose price is to be fixed in future. Therefore, there will be no impact of the fluctuation in the price of the gold on the
Group’s profit for the period. The Group has designated the trade payables pertaining to gold taken on loan from banks (‘unfixed gold’) as a fair value hedge to the corresponding gold
inventory purchased on loan,

b. Cash flow hedge
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage risks associated with gold price fluctuations relating to certain highly probable forecasted transactions. The Group has
designated derivative fi ial instruments taken for gold price fluctuations as ‘cash flow’ hedges relating to highly probable forecasted transactions.

The use of derivative financial instruments is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on the use of such instruments

Hedging instruments are initially measured at fair value, and are re-measured at subsequent reporting dates. Changes in the fair value of these derivatives that are designated and
effective as hedges of future cash flows are recognised in Other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading cash flow hedge reserve and the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. For forecast | jons, any cumulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in hedging reserve is retained until the forecast transaction oceurs upon which it is recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. If a
hedged transaction is no longer expected to oceur, the net cumulative gain or loss ac lated in hedging reserve is recognised | fiately to the of profit and loss.

The Group has designated derivative financial instruments taken for pold price fluctuptions as *cash flow” hedges relating o highly probable forecasted transactions.




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Material accounting policies and notes to the Consolidated financial statements

(xv) Provisions and contingent liabilities

a. Ciemeral -

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of embodying ec
benefits will be required to settle the oblig and n reliabl i can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of @ provision 1o be
reimbursed, the expense relating to a provision is d in the Consolidated of profit and loss net of any reimbursement, IF the effect of the time value of money is
material, provisions arc discounted using 8 current pre-tax rate that reflects, when approp iate, the risks specific to the libility. When discounting is used, the inerease in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Product warranty costs are determined based on past experience and provided for in the year of sale

b. Contingent liabilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not require an outflow of resources, When there is a
possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made

¢ (herons contracls

Provision for onerous contracts i .e. contracts where the expected unavoidable cost of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be
reccived under it, are recognized when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an
obligating event based on a reliable estimate of such obligation,

(xvi) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, demand deposits with banks and balances with banks. The Group considers all highly liquid investments with an original
maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to be cash equivalents

{xvii) Consolidated cash flow st

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Group are segregated.

(xviii) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are intercst and other costs incurred in connection with borrowing of funds. The borrowing cost includes interest expense accrued on gold on loan taken from banks.
Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which ily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitatized as part of
the cost of asset. Other borrowing costs are recopnised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

(xix) Enrning per share

Basic enrmning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tx by the weighted average mumber of equity shares outstanding during the yenr, Diluted loss per share is
computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic loss per share and also the weighted average number of
cquity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, Diluted camings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of equity
and dilutive cquivalent shares outstanding during the year, using the treasury stock method for aptions, except where the results would be anti-dilutive. The diluted poteatial equity
shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding shares), Dilutive potential equity shares
are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.

(xx) Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chiel Operating Decision Maker ({CODM'). The Board of Directors of the Group
assesses the financinl performance and position of the Group, The Managing Director and Chief executive officer hias been identificd ps the CODM.

The Group operates in one segment only ie. Jewellery, The CODM cvaluates the Group's performance based on the revenue operating income from the sale of Jewellery.
Accordingly, no additional liscl has been made for the business segment,

B4, b

4 Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issucd from time to
time. For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Group.
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the lidated Minancial st ts for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts i INK lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

5(i) Property, plant and equipment*
Gross carrying amount Accumulated depreciation Carrying amount {net)
Particulars Asal Adjustments**/Assel Asat Charge for the Adjustments**/Asset
1 April 2023 Additions Disposals/ Write off held for sale As at 31 March 2024 1 April 2023 - Disposals/ Write ofl’ held for sale As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2024
{Also refer Note 38) (Also refer Note 38)
Tangible assets
Furniture and fittings 1,790 653 357 22 2,064 413 203 61 4 551 1,513
Leasehold improvements 4,713 1,553 437 N 5,824 1,280 948 110 2 2,116 3,708
Computer equipment 1,756 308 19 63 1,982 907 484 11 34 1,346 636
Computer server 38 - - - 33 22 - - - 22 16
Mock jewellery 250 - - - 250 250 - - - 250 -
Office equipment 2,117 1,169 304 112 2,870 722 481 52 45 1,106 1,764
Jewellery machine 1,067 416 67 51 1,365 198 88 6 15 265 1,100
Vehicles 3 - - - i 2 - - - 2 |
Total (A) 11,734 4.099 1.184 2 14,396 3794 2,204 240 100 5,658 8,739
Gross carrying amount Accumulated deprecintion Carrying amount {net
Earticulars i "::“a;ozz Additions Disposals/ Write ofT Adjustments** As at 31 March 2023 1 Al::i:;OZZ Char::ﬂf:r the Disposals/ Write off Adjustments** As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Tangible assets
Furniture and fittings# 921 929 60 0 1,790 306 115 9 0 413 1377
Leasehold improvements # 1,631 3,200 118 0 4,713 909 423 52 0 1,280 3,433
Computer equipment# 1,033 724 1 0 1,756 569 337 - 0 907 850
Computer server 38 - - 38 19 2 - - 22 16
Mock jewellery 250 - - - 250 250 - - - 250 (V)]
Office equipment# 1,136 1,049 68 | 2,117 498 239 15 0 722 1,395
Jewellery machine# 693 421 47 0 1,067 141 63 6 0 198 868
Vehicles 3 - - - 3 2 - - - 2 |
Total (A} 5,705 6,322 294 1 11,734 2,695 1,179 82 0 3,794 7,941
*Refer Note 18(i) for details of security
**Includes Adjusiments pertams 1o exchange differneces on translation of foreign operations
# Represents amounts less than Rs.50,000
5(ii) Intangible assets
Gross carrying amount Ac lated nmortization Carrying amount (net)
. Adjustments**/Asset Adjustments**/Asset
SR . A‘;:““;m Additions | Disposals! Write off held for sale As at 31 March 2024 . A‘::i;'; - Ch"’i:ar:” the | pisposals/ Write off held for sale As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2024
(Also refer Note 38) (Also refer Note 38)
intangible assets
Computer software 5,015 1,857 - 86 6,786 2,156 1,480 - 68 3,568 3,218
Website 366 68 - 2 436 280 43 - ! 324 112
Total 5,381 1.925 - 88 7,218 2.436 1,523 - 69 3.892 3.330




CaratLune Trading Private Limited
Notes to the lidated financial ts for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AN amns in INR fakiis. unless otherwise siared)

5(ii) Intangible assets

Gross earrying amount Accumulated amortization Carrying amount (net)
Particulars As at As at Charge for the . .
HH H 8 ‘V H H kKX W i XK 2
1 April 2022 Additions Disposals/ Write off Adjustments As at 31 March 2023 1 April 2022 year Disposals/ Write ol Adjustments’ As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2023
Intangible assets
Computer software 2,684 2,453 127 5 5,015 1,494 776 116 2 2,156 2,859
Website 291 71 - 4 366 243 37 - 280 86
Total 2,975 2.524 127 9 5,381 1,737 813 116 2 2.436 2,945
**Adjustments pertains to exchange differneces on translation of foreign operations
S(iii) Capital Work in Progress
(A) Movement of Capital Work in Progress
As at 31 March 2024
" As at . Capitalisation during
Particul Al t 024
articulars 1 April 2023 * dditions the year As at 31 March 202

Capital Work in Progress * 0 192 124 68
Total 0 192 124 68

*Represents amounts less than Rs.50,000

Particulars
. As at - o

Particulars 1 Anril 2022 Additions Disposals As at 31 March 2023
Capital Work in Progress * 2 - 2 0
Total 2 - 2 0
* Represents amount less than Rs.50,000
(B) Ageing of Capital Work in Progress
As ul 31 March 2024

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 veurs 2-3 years More than 3 vears
(a) Projects in progress 68 - - - 68
{b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - = -
Total 68 - - - 68
As at 31 Murch 2023
- v =
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years

(a) Projects in progress* 0 - - E 0
(b) Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 0 - - = 0

*Represent amount less than Rs. 50,000




Carutbane Trading Private Limited

(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stnied)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Z(iv) Ageing of Intangible assets under development:

As at 31 March 2024

(A) Movement of Intangible assets under development :

I There are no projects as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 where the project timelines are overdue
2. There are no projects as on 3! March 2024 and 31 March 2023 where the cost exceeded the original plan approved by the Board of Directors.

Particulars s Additions | CPPitalisation during Reversals As at 31 March 2024
1 April 2023 the vear
Intunyible assets under develapment 98 2.140 1.904 2 332
Total 98 2,140 1.904 2 332
As at 31 March 2023
; As at - Capitalisation during
3

Particulars 1 Aprit 2022 Additions the vear As at 31 March 202
Intangible asseis under development 530 1,793 2,225 98
Total 530 1.793 2,225 98
(B) Ageing of Intangible assets under development :
As at 31 March 2024

e — . -
Particulars Amournt in gible assets under development for a period Total
Less than 1 vear 1-2 yenrs 2-3 vears More than 3 yeurs
(a) Projects in progress 332 - 332
(b) Projects temporarily suspended = - - - -
Total 332 - - - 332
As at 31 March 2023
— e =
Particulars Amount in | assets under development for a period Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

(a) Projects in progress 98 - - - 98
b} Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total 98 - - 98
Notes :




( Carutlane Tesding Private Limited
(ntes tn the consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
Jm 6 Right of use assels®
i
Partirutars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 Msrch 3023
(‘ Asal Aprl | 25,032 1121
Add : Additions 12397 16.298
Add: Adpustments 2 .
Le Modifications / Terminalions 244 2387
— A st March 31 N9 P
( Accumulated amortisation
As ol April | 4879 2,579
Add : Amontisation expense 4676 2570
= Add Adjustments J
( ~ I.ess : Modifications / Terminations 1439 10
As ut March 31 [ATH LHTY
Net carrying value 23,040 10,155
(‘:' ‘ =Alsa refer note 30
7 (@) Other financial assets
= Asat Asal
31 March 3024 31 March 1023
Unsecured, comtshiborval gonal
Sccunty depasils 2141 2,168
Lease receivables (Refer note 30) 7462 4698
R Other depasits 109 ]
[EIT] ERE
W liwnme fax
(' ; a) The follawing s the analysls of deferred tas asset/(liabilities):
j
Aaal
Parthoul .
AR 31 March 3621
heferrod tax avenn A30) 1453
( 3292 1403
. Recognised in the .
Recagnised in other Recignised in Asat
Trarticd
g comprehensh ¢ Income """“""'I:L'"'“"' and o ained arming 31 March 2024
( Ihederrnd tax asscls
Tricrvt v for dosshtfad tiade revenvabées 17 . (&) B 4
Praperty, plant and equipment 145 - % - 239
Emplayce benefits 5 o 63 B 503
I.case Tiabilifics (net af Righi-nf-use nssois) 240 . 271 . 51
( Carmvie of Losses and 579 . 768 . 1347
Provisian for Property, plont end cquipment 2 . (0) . 29
Pravision for warnty 47 - 17 . [
ESOP Liobilites : . 14.822) 5325 503
Others - - 42 - 92
( 1), 25 580, (X313 3197
Recognised in the .
Asat Recogmised in ather Recognied In At
Trarticul ! E d
TR 1 April 2022 ""'"'"““":‘_r_""'"' wnd - mprehensive income  retained carnlng 31 March 2023
( Dheferrad lan sssels
- Provisian for doubiful trade receivables 1 6 : - 17
Toperty, plant and equipment 218 )] . < 145
Employee henefits 23 86 n . 46
Lease liabililics (net of Rithi-ol-use nssets) 156 8 . . 240
Carm farward of Losses and unshsorbed depreciation 4480 (3.901) . - 579
Provision for Property. plant and eqnipment - 2 . . 29
Trovision for warmanty - ar . - i7
S [T%: FT) B [
( 6 h)  Amounts recopnised In statement af profit and loxs
F— Far the year endpd ¥or the year ended
31 March 204 11 March 2023
Tnesme tax eanrnaes
( Currenl 1A% 1 4
Deferred tox 3530 3723
Incame tox included in other camprehens:ve inconic on
- Remeasurement of employee defined benelit plans 193 an
( Tax expense for the year Ty PR
e} The recongilinlion between the provision ol invome tax and amounis camputed by applying the Indian statutory income X mle 1o prolit belore laxes:
F For the year ended Far the year ended
Partiadk 3 »
(\ g 31 March 2004 31 Murch 3623
= Timiit befiste tay 11,497 1193
Enaviod income tay e m bnda 2517% 25.17%
Compuled expecied lax expense 2867 2,004
Effect
| Fi¥ecl of tilisalion of carmy farward lasses and unabsnrbed depreciation against curfent years profit 663 7
Others 3 4
Incame tax expense recngnised in the statement af profit and loss 3,533 3,727
% Note s From the Assessment Year 2022-23 amwards refevant 1o the previons year 2021-22, the Company has electod t etercin fhe optian permitted udee scetion 11SIAAC1) of the Income 1y Act. 1961 aher sansiyimg the condilions contuined in section
115BAA(2) as introdscsd by the Taxation Lows (Amendment) Ordinance. 2019. dingly. the Company hus not redssgrnd sl Minlmum alternative Tux (MAT) under fl: prosasion foc income tox: fur the year ended 31 March 2021 and computed deferred
1 based on the i prescribed in the said section primarily for the carned forward losses.
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( arutlane Trading Private Laslied
05 to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
LA misiints b 18 B, el sl rtae piiitid)

—
{ Wb The fllowlng tahle provides the details of income tax assets and incame fax liabllitics as of 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023:
, Asat Asat
N Piurtinilary 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
( Tnenase fax wvsgts et 1016 215
Current tax lbilitics (net) L &
Nel current income tax axsets al the end of the year K s
= s For the year ended Fur the year conded
31 March 2024 3 March 203
Nel currenl incame ax assels ot the begmming of the vear 215 s
Income lax paid 873 127
72 21

Refund received durng the year *
3 Nt eurernt bonine By avaets at the eod of e vear —F 1 i},

d 31 March 2024, refund had been received for Assessement Year 2022-23 ol Rs 78 Lakhs including Interest on refund amounting 10 Rs 6 Lakbs (previnus year: relind hod been received [or Asscwsement Year 2021-22 of Rs 29 84

= Durm the year ende
1.akhs inchuding Intcrest on refund amounting Lo Rs 2 46 Lakhs)

(— i S Other non-current assets
As al As at
tieulal
foslimnd 31 Mareh 3024 31 March 7028
~ Trvecired, comdored gl
( Capital advances 269 671
. Deferred rental deposit (Reflee nots below) 196 124
Preposmients s 124
Balanee with goverment anthoriics 6000 PRt
! [ReT) 3.0
: Nute s
Deferred rental depasit represents discauned value of depasit as per fnd AS 109
N 1 Iventaries
( \ Particylars Asat At
31 March 3034 31 March 2023
Pp— 9300 12545
) Work-in-proaress 1550 1200
Finshed aoods 7260 61,835
Stock-in-lrade 1AL} 13,10h

m 0TS

Nastes 1

1) The iviasmey inchuide ol puircliaveid o i rim Bk umsssmsing s (MR 41,2290 ek (pecsiove yoar: INR, 20931 ek

{0 vty e K71 kit of Gkl oot o whiach 68 kv hdped thprenght pokd e fhoen sk, Sk oxmttats s o onles and 8 kg are unhedged ns at 31 March 2024 Carrying value of the gold
et o sttty i mm 4 Tn 396, 1K Tk (Pecuionsy v vy inchides T75 ki of Chokd oua o w figh 767 L aes hedged through gold laan from bank, fulure contructs and open orders ond 8 kg are
unbadged s a 31 March 021 Carryieg salise of the pobd pledped i secatity b loass s R 6,064 fakbs)

P} Hrmmmmng 4 abee all dvestetres 36¢ gihem o socaniy e s e b Faie ok ovwerdrnih sl canh cand. Al refed mdes TR}

(1) Refer point 3(vii)under sigmificant accounhing poficics for mode of valuation
(4 hnventory lying with the job worker amounting 10 Rs 3,363 lukhs (Previous year : Rs 3393 lakhs)

Financinl assets

i} Trmbe receivaldes

_—~ NN ™

Avsl Aam
Snitintaes 34 Aareh 324 31 March 2023
Visseviirnl
Trade recervahles, considered good 656 1.285
Hewen sl from eckssed partes (Hafer note 29) 12 i
- Viens Al ance for doubind fiade rovoyabics - .
3 1317
Tinibe rovervuhles, sridet unparicd 16 .
Lo Aflnbusce for devibelid 1mde roveiubles (6) -
( 68 1317
{2) Ageing of receivables :
Ax a1 March 2024
( Tt tanling Dor Falm ing peeimis b dute of ieveice
= Particulars Lexs than 6 manths Hamatine, =) 23y0urs Mowe than 3 pears Fatal
| sear. vears
) Undispnied Trade seseivables - conaderad good CH & - . - 664
(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which hnse semificant increase in credit risk . : . . . -
(1) Undisputed {rade Receivables - credu impaired - It E . 16
- (iv) Disputed Trode Recewables- considered srnd . . . d .
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have sigmificant ingrease in credi risk - . . . =
{vi} Dispuled Trade Recervables - credit impaired . . s . .
( | Tistal i pY - - . [xY]
i A ot 3} March 103381
Tt e e flliowing peeinds from date of ol
Tarkéilans Less than 6 months § months - s 23 years Nate than 3 yesrs Turad
1 your sears
L 1) Undimpetend Trade revrinables - oomidened wied 1208 1 - . - [KIE
= (o1} Llndbispuiiod Trude flecevabies - which e semfhesst inerease in credit nak ; s . . . .
i) Undisputed Trade Recenvables - credit impared . . . - . .
iiv) Disputed Trode Recenvables-— considered cood . - , . = 2
) Dupinted Trade Recervables - which hnve sienificant incrense in credit risk - . i ; = .
( 1) Disputed Trade Reveivables  credit impoired - 2 N . s
- Tial L e = - - 1317

(h) Movement in the expecied credit loss allawance ¢

l\\‘ ’ Particudars L Al
31 March 3024 30 Mureh 2033
Thalanee of the bz o e vear . a3
I'ravision created dunns: the vear i -
& Flad debls wntten oY dunng the vear - (43)
= Dalance at the end of the year 16 5
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Financial awsets (continued)
sh and cash equivalents

Particulars Ay ot Anm
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 516 1o
Malusiges wiils banks
() in current account 1,655 571
Giymk u E
1195

Note : The balance under current aceount inchudes finds in transil primarily lor eredit

{iii) Other bank balances

card receipts yet 10 be credited 1n the Company of Rs 495 lakhs (Previous vear: Rs 216 lakhs)

. Asat Asat
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deposts placed for Gold hedging 209 -
Depasits undor Licn (Refer note below) 195 118
Total 04 178
Note : Represents fised deposits placed with bunks for duty [ree gold purchiased for export parpose and depasits placed fir disputed duc of indirect (axes
(1% Loans reccivuble
Poriidnrs Anat Asat
3 March 2024 31 Marsh 023
nseesred, pumnilered yossd
Emplayee lans 124 s
13 T
(+) Other financil sssets
Asat A
Papibend
ey 33 Murch 3024 34 Murch 2023
Unsecured, cwmabered grond
case receivubles (Refir nale 30) L1s1 19
Seeurity deposits 208 25
Interest acerued on lised depasis 2 20
Accrued Incanie (Refer note (b) below) 102 59
Other recers able (Refer nole () below) 1.896 611
Reflind recervable from govemment autlorities 1094 .
Margn mone for gold futire contrsets 1.502 2519
Ayre 20,
Notes :
() Balance pertains o nneunt receivoble from T 1 fa day 1o day expendil
() Aceured income represents halunce tawards bl discountiny for vesdar invoices und duty drasback receivable
Other current assets
Avat At

Parthculars

31 March 224

31 March 2023

Unsecured, conviifenvad gol

Balance with government autharitics (Refer Nole (a) below)
Prepavmients

Right (o recover retumed goods (Refer Note (b) below)
Other awels

Advance 1o suppliers

Note:

(u) Brlonce sith gavemment nuthontics pergins current and non current GST credils of Rs. 19,150 lakhs (P

(b) Right ta recover relumed goods represcits the amount of goods expeeted fo be received by the Company

11.996
843
496

2

10911
707
339

8
Lage

e
11068 12,954

revions year: Rs 13255 lakhs) in respeet 10 GST input credit, transitionol credil. deemed credil and refund recervable

on account of sales relum. Also, reter disclosure made under note 33




CaratLane Trading Private Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts i INR lekhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Share capital

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Authorised share capital

Equity share of Rs. 2 each with voting rights 49,953,234 999 49,953,234 999
Total authorised share capital 49,953.234 999 49,953,234 999
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up equity share capital

Equity share of Rs. 2 each with voting rights 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667
Total issued share capital 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 2. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the
Board of Directors is subject to approval by the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareliolders

(ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme

Duiing the financial year 2017-18, the Company introduced Caratlane Stock Option Plan 2017 (‘the Plan"). This Plan supersedes the following stock options and stock option

plans:
a. Executive Management Stock Gption Scheme 2009

b. CaratLan= Trading India Private Limited Stock Option Scheme for Consultants, 2013

¢. Senior Management Stock Option Scheme, 2012

As per the plan, Board of Directors grants options to the employees of the Company. The vesting period of the option is one to four years frém the date of grant. Options|
granted under the Scheme can be exercised within a period of six years from the date of vesting. For employees leaving the organization, an option can be exercised within 3

months from the date of resignation,

A maximum of 714,017 options are issuable under this plan. The movement in options issued are as below:

Particulars

For the year ended  Weightad average
31 March 2024 exercise price

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Weighted average
exercise price

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year 491,711 188 574,000 174
Options granted during the year - - 2,500 474
Options forfeited during the year (27,100) 436 (9,000) 302
Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) (464.311) 173

Options exercised during the year (300) 474 (75.789) 79
Quistanding at the end of the year - - 491,711 158
Options exercisable at the end of the year 379,711 133

Cash settled options

Particulars

For the year ended  Fur the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Options outstanding at the beginning of the year
Options granted during the year
Options forfeited during the year

Options converted to cash settled during the year (Refer note below) 464,311 -
Cptions settled during the year (411,499) .
Qutstanding at the end of the year 52,812 -

Note :

1. During the year ended 31 March 2024, Board on 13 December 2023 had ap
settlement of outstanding Vested and unexercised Options to all eligible employees/ ex-
further approved the net cash payout of Rs. 20,083 Lakhs (adjusted for exercise price amounting to Rs.

proved the conversion of the exisitng ESOP plan to cash setiled plan and approved cash
employees on surrender of the said Vested and unexercised Options. The Board
608 Lakhs as applicable to the respective employees/ ex- employces) 10

be paid in lieu of the total 4,11,499 Vested and unexercised Options under the Company's ESOP Plan to the eligible employees/ ex-employees on surrender of the said Vested

and unexercised Options.

Net change after adjusting the ESOP reserve with the consideration has been de
of tax of INR 4.870 Lakhs). For unvested options, net change after adjusting t

bited to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 14,481 Lakhs (nel

debited to retained earnings under the head of Other equity, amounting to INR 1,349 Lakhs (net of tax of {NR 454 Lakhs).

2 As at 31 March 2024, there are 52,812 options outstanding pending settlement,
at Rs 5,028 per option amounting to Rs.2,076 Lakhs. The impact of fair valuation of cash settled ESOP plaa from the da

to statement of profit and loss amounting to Rs.166 lakhs.

he related ESOP reserve with the fair value on the date of modification of the plan has been

of which 16,200 have vested and 36,612 are unvested. These options have been fair valued
te of modification to 31 March 2024 has been debited




Caratl.ane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Al amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Fair value measurement
The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black-Scholes-Merion Model which takes into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant
date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term of the option

The weighted average rematning contractual life of the options outstanding as of 31 March 2023 under the Caratlane stock Options Plan was 6 years

The key inputs used in Black-Scholes-Merton Model for calculating fair value of options under the scheme as on the date of grant are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
No. of options granted - 2,500
Date of grant - August 1 2022

For 1,375 options
immediate vesting

Vesting period and 1,125 graded

- vesting over 4 years
Volatility rate (%) - 33.71%
Risk free rate (%) - 721%
Expected life of options (years) - 5.0
Weighted avernge fair value per share (Rs.) - 1,128

There are no options granted during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Thie fair value of the options is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton Model with the following assumptions:

Date of conversion

Particulars 31 March 2024 13 December 2023
Fair Value . : 5,027 5,027
Share Price ' 5,028 5,028
Risk free rate (%) 4.30% 4.30%
Adjusted Beta 0.78 0.78
Equity Risk premium 5% to 7% 5% to 7%
Country risk premium 1.60% 1.60%
India Inflation 4.00% 4.00%
US Inflation 2.00% 2.00%
Average Cost of Equity 12.70% 12.70%
No. of options 52,812 464311

MUMBAL )
)
% R,




ICaratLane Trading Private Limited
Jotes to the lidated fi ial

ts for the year ended 31 March 2024

FAH amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stared)

; 13 Share capital (continued)

1 (ii) Shares reserved for issue under Employee Stock Option Scheme (continued)

The stock price of the Company is arrived using discounted cashflow. Implied volatility is the unit at which the price of shares of peer liste

d companies has fluctuated during

years subject to adjustment of time lapses from the date of grant. The risk free rate considered for calculation is based on the yield on Government Securities for 10 years as on

the date of valuation.

| the past period. The expected time to maturity/ expected life of the options is the period for which the Company expects the options to be alive, which has been taken as 10

(iii) Reconciliation of the shares

ding at the begi

and at the end of the year

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

et - —— | — | ——

Particulars No. of shares L No. of shares Amount
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Equity shares with voting rights
At the beginning of the year 33,345,841 667 33,270,052 665
Add: Issue of shares p 10 options being ex; | by employees * 300 0 75,789 2
At the end of the year 33,346,141 667 33,345,841 667
* Represents amount less than Rs.50,000
iv) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars % Y
No. of shares held . No. of shares held holdi
FEquity shares with voting rights
Titan Company Limited (Refer notes below) 33,343,141 99.99% 24,036,320 72.08%
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti - 0.00% 3,835,327 11.50%
Mr. Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti - 0,00% 3,700,000 11.10%
Mr. Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% 1,655.000 4.96%
Total 33,343.141 100% 33,226,647 100%
(v) Shareholding of promoters
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
g motermasis No. of Shares | % of total shares 0/.“ Change No. of Shares | % of total shares n/," Change
during the year during the year
Titan Company Limited (Refer notes below) 33,343,141 99.99% 39% 24,036,325 72,08% -
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti . 0.00% -100% 3,835,327 11.50% -
Mr. Siddhartha Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% -100% 3,700,000 11.10% -
Mr. Padamchand Sacheti - 0.00% -100% 1,655,000 4.96% -

Notes :

— — — —

1. During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Board in its meeting held on 28 Nover
inembers, Mr. Siddhartha Padam Sacheti & Mr. Padamchand Sacheti (collectively, the Sellers) for purchase of 91,90,327 equity shares representing 27.5
the Company on a fully diluted basis to Titan Company Limited.
2. Includes shares held by directors jointly with Titan Company Limited and Nominee Directors

miber 2023 took on record the transfer of shares held by Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, the Founder and his family
6% of the total paid-up equity capital of
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Niles to the consoliduted financlul stalements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(08 ppmppnanets int INR fuabdiee, wiless tlrerwine stistedd)

14 Onher cquity

b

Asal As nl
Particulars
" 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2023
Seourtics promiim 41,149 41,141
(\mownts received on isswe of shares i excess of the par value hos been classified as securities premium)
Stock options nutslanding account (Refer Note 13) . 864
(Shares granted to emplovee under emplovee stack option plan)
Ru cd carmings (Refer Note 13) 122D (23,253)
(Retamed carnings comprise of the Compamy's prior vears ' losses after tax)
Forign curreney translation reserve (147 92)
(Represents reinstatement of foreign currency balances of subsidiary)
Other comprehensive income (607) (326)
(Represents actuarial gain or loss on remeasurement of nel defined henefit liability)
#1714 IE}I

Finnncial liuhilities - Non Current
i. Borrowings

As at Asat

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

At umortised cost:

Sceured

Tang-term borrowimgs Term loan (Refer note 3 below)
Less Current maturities of long-term borrowings

Unsecured

Lang-lerm barrowings Term loan (Refer note | & 2 below)
Less: Current maturities of long-term horrowings

Mnten:

I P thie vest edad 11 Mareh 2024 wmount of Ra 805 lakdi has been repaniad reliting W (e abose wisedred Joan

Company Limited at an interest rule of 0 5% per annum which hus heen discharged

Lensc liabilitles

16,512
(476

219
@1,

13,836

1. Eraring e year entead 31 March 2024 the Comipsiny has urken wisocural térm loan amunting 1o Be 17,317 Lakha frown THFC Bank 1 for beand buitding activiues. The
irderest rabe un the ferm boan ranges between 7455 o 7.94% por anmium aed pavishic over 60 equal montily crpata hents el foen Jasoee 2004,

3. The louss oustatanding o ot | Al 2023 mnomibing 1o R, 219 Eabhs has boo eepaid dunag the vear which was seored apaind the corpopate guarantee issued by Titan

Avad Asal
PR 31 Muirch 2024 31 March 2023
Toose Tabaines (Refer fie 31 WET PR
SOAIT 21,599
Ofther financial linbill
As ut Asal
Pt 31 Murch 2024 31 March 2023
Hetlal deposit 580 362
ctiled 1S i) .
il 2
18
16 Other nan-current Uabilitics
Avat Asat
Partiulass 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Theferraad remtal by s 5
135 87
Mot
Delerred rental hability represents discounted value of securily deposil as per Ind AS 109
17 Pravilom
Asal Asat
.
Partioulars 31 Morch 21124 31 March 2023
Provm for gratinty [Refr iake 31 - Long Term 1137 693
1,137 w3
—

, . A 2 S,

‘. T .'{'a-‘
( 0
HE Mumear 1S
N o
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18 Financlal linbiliti

i. Borraaings

Particulars

Asal
3 March 24

Aval

31 Mlarch 1023

Secured
Fank vwentin snd b eaodit (Refer Nede 1 and 3 Telow)
Crvent matuiritres of Jong dettn borrewdngs

Unsecured

Bill discounting (Kefer Nole 2 Below)

Bank overdm(l and cash credu

Commereial puper (Refer Note 34)

Current matunties of long term borrow mgs {Refer Note 15())

15827 15288
- 29
6 8R7 -
- 1,993
- 21,262
3,476 -
46,190 56,712

Notes :

1. Securcd ugainst the Company
snnum and is pavable at monthly intervals, The overdrll is payable on demand.

2. Puring the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has entered into on with ivohl h
180 days and interest nule ranging hetween 7.05% to 7.50% towards reverse fuctoring, of MSME payments.

iL Gold on loan

3. The Compiny has ied statements as at the quarter end swith the buks which are in ugreement with the books of accounts 05 ut respective quarter ends

inventony, receivables and Property, Plant and Equipment on pari-passu basis. The interest ra(c on the overdrafl varies from 7.25% Lo 9 5% per

of Indi limited and with eredut period ranging betw cen 86 to

Asatl

Asat

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Secarud
vkl 1w anka® 40,220 20931
414,220 20,931

the debvery of gold

Bl Lewse Habsilities

+Secured against myentory and recervables Inchudes amounts payahle aguinst gold purchased from various banks under gold on loan scheme. The interest rate of the gold an loai
canes from 2 25% fo 2 50% per unnuim as at 31 March 2024 and is payable al monthly intervals. The credit penod under the aforesnid arrangement is 180 duys from the date of

Particulurs . Atal
31 March 2024 M Mairch 2023
Faase liabilities [refir note 30] - Current 4,500 3363
(K :
. Trude payables
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2024 3] March 2023
Trade payables
Outstanding dues of micro and small enterpriscs |[Refer note (b) below] 3414 3466
Outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro and smll enierpriscs
- Creditors for goods 14,398 RO87
- Credilors for services %02 X002
6204 l'JéS._‘
(4) Ageing of Trade Puyuhles :
Anaf 31 March 2024:
Purtioulars Outstanding for following; periods from duc date of payment
Nt due Leas than | year -2 ygurs 2-3 years Sivre than 3 seurs Total
1) MEME EXIE] - . - . 3kl
{11h Others 21344 1456 - - 22,800
{iid Disputed dues - MSME - . - - . -
(i) Disputed dues — Others - . - - - -
24,758 |A.2 - - . 6204
An w31 March 2023:
Particulars Outstanding far fullowing perinds fram due date of payment
Nl dus Less than | year 13 avnrs 2.5 voars Morv than 3 yeurs Tutul
(8) MSMIE 3462 - 4 - - 3466
(11} Others 15,029 028 16 16 E 16,089
() Disputed dues - MSMIZ . - - - . -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others . . F E : i
lﬂ_-‘_9l 928 120 16 - 19558

(b) Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Smull and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

of informatian avalable s ith the Company and has hee relied upon by the audilors

There are no muterial ducs owed by the Company to Micro and $Small enterprises, which are autstanting for more than 45 duys during the year and os ut 31 March 2024 “This
\nformation us required under the Miero, Smull and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has heen determined ta the extent such parties huve been identified on the basis

Particulsrs

Avar
31 March 2024

Asat
31 Murch 2023

(0} the principal amount i thie mieren due thereon rematming sisipaled i any suppliet at the end of each tecannbing year,

- Principal

- Inlerest
() Whe amount of interest paid by the buyer in lems of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), ulong with the amount of the payment mode 1o the supplicr heyond tne appointed
duy durins each sccennt i vesr;
(€) the mist oF iritcrest dne iend puyable for the period of deloy in muking payment (which has been pud but bevond the
appoiniud day durng e ver) but without adding the interest spocified under the Micro, Smull ond Medium Enterpnises
Develepment Aet, 2006,
() e armensne of infetest acerued and remaimm unpaid at (he énd of ach agsimmntu vear: and
(e} the et of lkather intetest remaimins i and pavable even in the suceceding years, until such date when the
interest dhies sibove ire actiilly pid o the small enterpise, for the puepase of dsll of u deductib} di
under section 23 of the Micro, $mll and Medium Enterprises Development Act. 2006

3,407

3,466

i

JAbh

Dues lo Micra and Smuill Enterprises have been delermined (o the extent such parties hove been idenufied on the basis of

colleeted by the
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Financial liablllties - Currcnt ‘continuedy

v. Other financlal liabilltes

Asat Asat
it 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 1053
Cupatal cradizne 12 217
Cash settled ESOP hability (Also Refer Note 13) 1817 .
Interest payable 219 -
Employee poyables 635 1452
771 s
19 Other current liabliltles
Asal As at
il 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
P hefierrend remtnd depesst | Heler node below ) a2 22
Statutory dues 554 624
Liability for sales retumn (Refer note 33) 758 512
Advonce from [ranchisee 36 40
Advance from customers 8437 5726
Other M5 -
10,172 6924
e -
Nite z
1. Deferred rental deposit represents discounted value of deposit as per Ind AS 109
20 Provislons
: Asat Asat
e 31 March 224 31 March 2013
P wm fow gttty el nite 314 199 (1]
Provision for compenseted choences (Refer note 31) 586 389
Provision for Incame ey . 32
Provision for warranty Wil w2
1045 Téd
i
Nolc a: Provision for warranty
Mawestion bl ie For provisia of warraney dipsng the voar
Asar Asat
Partloulors 31 March 2624 31 Murch 2023
pemng halanes i [
Provisions made duning, Lhe year. K2l 158
Ulilsations / reversed during the year 1275 7

Provislon at the end of the year 260 e
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21 Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended

Note :

which is disclosed as other operating revenues.

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Export 288 275
Domestic 290,202 216.606
Sale of products 290,490 216,881
Other operating revenue (Refer Note below) 17,604 -
308,094 216,881

During the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company sold gold bullion amounting to Rs.17,604 lakhs to various customers dealing in bullion

Particulars

For the vear ended

The reduction towards variable consideration comprises of scheme discounts, incentives, etc.

22 Other income

) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contracted price 356,564 255,355
Reduction towards variable consideration 48470 38.474
Revenue recognised 308,094 216,881

For the year ended

23 (a) Cost of material consumed

SRS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Franchisee signining fees 373 360
Deferred rental income 151 131
Rent deposit equalization 30 55
Net Gain on termination of leases 388 -
Interest income on financiai assets carried at amortised cost 692 553
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 100 38
Net gain on sale of current investments 53 3
Net gain or loss on foreign currency translation 11l 191
Rental Income 155 76
Interest on Margin Deposit 103 10
Export duty drawback 126 129
Miscellaneous income 260 362
2,542 1,908

For the year ended

* Includes stock classified as assets held for sele (Refer note 38)

23 (b) Purchases of stock-in-trade

i iy 3T March 2024 31 March 2023
Inventories of Raw materials at the beginning o{ the year 12,545 12,483
Add: Purchases 198,071 160,704
Less: Inventortes of Raw Materials at the end of the year * (9,271) (12,545)

201,345 160,642

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2624 31 March 2023

Purchases of traded goods

24,359 16,593

24,359 16,593
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CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

24

26

23 (c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Finished goods
- Closing stock *
- Opening stock

Work-in-progress

- Closing stock

- Opening stock
Stock-in-trade

- Closing stock

- Opening stock
Increase in inventory

* [ncludes stock classified as assets held for sale (Refer note 38)

Employee benefits expense

75,047 61,835
61.835 32,649
(13,212) 29,186)
1,550 1,289
1,289 1.078

261) (211)
19,633 15,116
15,116 7,730
(4,517) (7,386)

(17,990) (36,783)

For the year ended

Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 14,734 11,737
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31) 398 328
Staff welfare expense 1,496 1,191
Gratuity expenses (Refer Note 31) 259 174
Employee share based payment expense (Refer Note 13) 148 113
17,035 13,543

Finance cost

For the year ended

BasHituiacs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest on borrowings (Refer note below) 5,003 3,004
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer Note 30.2) 3,089 1,640
Others 25 17

8,117 4,661
Note:

Interest on borrowing includes Interest on Gold on Loan of Rs.737 Lakhs and I

nterest on Bank overdraft of Rs 4,266 Lakhs for the year ended 31

March 2024 (Previous year : Interest on Gold on Loan 654 Lakhs and Interest on Bank overdraft of Rs.2,350 Lakhs)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer Note 5(i)) 2,204 1,180
Depreciation of right of use asset (Refer Note 5) 4,676 2,570
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer Note 5(ii)) 1,523 811
8,403 4,561




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

o)

27

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advertising 22,520 17,154
Agent commission 19,926 13,736
Rent (Refer note 30) 461 506
Freight and forwarding 2,618 2,047
Travelling and conveyance 921 824
Professional service charges 3,934 3,641
Bank charges 960 809
Software expenditure 3,019 1,571
Bad debts written off (Net of provision) 1 -
Power and fuel 602 365
Communication expenses 153 118
Rates and taxes 179 216
Director sitting fee (Refer note 29) 60 29
Repairs and maintenance 1,181 774
Payments to auditors (Refer 27.1 below) 55 79
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer 27.2 below) 148 18
Property, plant and equipment written off 24 96
Intangible assets written off 3 20
Stores and consumables 345 264
Royalty (Refer note 29) 456 322
Miscellaneous expenses 409 1,048
57,975 43,637
Notes :
27.1 (i) Payment to auditors (Excluding taxes)
. For the year ended
Fagficgps 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
For statutory audit 28 28
For tax audit 2 2
For limited review 24 24
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 1 |
55 55

Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended




CaratLane Trading Private Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AUl amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27.2 Corporate Social Responsibility:

(i) Gross amount approved by the board and required to be spent towards corporate social responsibility by the Company during the year:

Rs. 148 lakhs

(ii) Amount spent during the year on:

Particulars

For the year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1. Amount approved by the board to be spent during the year 148 17
2. Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 148 17
3. Amount of expenditure incurred on:
-Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
- On purposes other than above 76 18
4. Excess/(Shortfall) at the end of the year (72) |
5. Total of previous years shortfall - -
6. Reason for short fall - -
' Health, Education, Health, Education,
Skill development, Skill development,
7 Nature of CSR Activities Disaster relief, Wellness Disaster relief. Wellness
and Water, and Water,
Sanitation and Hygiene, Sanitation and Hygiene,
Entrepreneurship Entreprencurship
(iii) CSR Contribution to Related parties
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Related Parties - -
Unrelated parties 76 18
(iv) Details of Unspent obligations :
Particulars For the year ended

31 March 2024

Opening Balance as at 1 April 2023

Amount required to be spend during the year

Amount spent during the year from Company's bank account
Amount spent during the year from separate CSR unspent account
Closing Balance with Company

Closing Balance in separate CSR unspent account

148
76
20
52
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28 Earnings per share

Reconciliation of basic and diluted shares used in computing per share

For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Basic and diluted profit per share
Profit after tax 7,859 8.208
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of basics earning per share 33,346,125 33,296,665
Add : Dilutive effect of stock options 319,005 213,096
Number of weighted average shares considered for calculation of diluted earning per share 33,665,129 33,509,761
Earning per share
Nominai value of share (in INR) 2 2
Earnings per share - Basic (in INR) 23.57 24.65
Earnings per share - Diluted (in INR) 23.34 24.49

29  Related party disclosures
i) Relationship
a) Holding company ] Titan Company Limited

b) Key management personriel H Mr. Avnish Anand, Managing Director (w.e.f2 January 2024)
Mr. Avnish Anand, Chief executive officer (w.e.f 1 September 2023 to | January 2024)
Mr. Mithun Padam Sacheti, Managing Director (Resigned w.e.f 28 November 2023)
Mr. Bhaskar Bhat, Non-executive Director
Mr. Ashok Kumar Sonthalia, Director
Mr. C K Venkataraman, Non-executive Director (w.e.f 22 December 2022)
Mr. Haresh Ram Chawla, Independent Director
Mr. Sandeep Anant Kulhalli, Non-exccutive Director (Resigned w.e.f. 9 November 2022)
Mr. Ajoy Hiro Chawla, Non-executive Director
Ms. Neelam Chhiber, Independent Director
Mr. Manoj Bhanawat, Chiefl Financial Officer
Ms. Ahona Das, Company. Secretary (Resigned w.e.f31 March 2024)
Mr. Neeraj Rawat, Director

¢) Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel or relative of Microgo, LLP (till 28 November 2023)
Key Management Personnel has significant influence Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited (till 28 November 2023)
’ Starfire Gems Private Limited (i1l 28 November 2023)
Luxury Online Retail India P:ivate Limited (till 28 November 2023)
MJs Yashrey (till 28 November 2023)

d) Group entity Tata Sons Private Limited

€) Fellow Subsidiary Titan Commodity Trading Limited

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:

For the year ended

Name of the related party Nature of transaction —]
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Jaipur Gems and Handicrafts Private Limited Sale of products : - 980
Reimbursement of expenses - Payable 22 12

Starfire Gems Private Limited Purchase of goods 18 113
Sale of products 8 -
Rent payable 11 22

Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty expense 451

Titan Company Limited Purchase of goods - 89
Royalty expense 5 322
Other [ncome - 8
Rent and miscellaneous income 128 34
Reimbursement of expenses - Encircle 30 14
Insurance, salary and other expenses 538 492
[nterest on Corporate guarantee * 0 3

* Represents amount less than Rs. 50,000
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29  Related party disclosures (continued)

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below (Contd):

Name of the related party Nature of transaction

Titan Commodity Trading Limited Commodity Trading Transactions
Cash Margin money
Interest income

Commission on commodity trading services

M/s Yashrey Rent
Security Deposit

Key management personnel Short term employee benefits

Long term employee benefits

Transactions with the related parties during the year are set out in the table below:

For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023|

554 509
116 1,386
103 10
17 4
310 103
- 207
6,199 393

40 -

Name of the related party Nature of transaction

For the vear ended

31 March 2024

31 Muarch 2023

Neelam Chhiber Sitting fees 19 11
Haresh R Chawla Sitting fees 16 8
Bhaskar Bhat Sitting fees 15 6
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Sitting fees 4
Neelam Chhiber Commission to Directors* 21
Haresh R Chawla Commission to Directors* 21 -
Bhaskar Bhat Commission to Directors* 14 -
Sandeep Anant Kulhalli Commission to Directors* 4 -
Microge LLP Reimbursement of expenses/services - Receivable - 4
* excludes provision for commission payable to directors for year ended 31 March 2024 amounting to Rs.81 Lakhs
Balances as on balance sheet date
. As at As at
Name of the related party Nature of transaction 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Titan Company Limited Trade payable 3 2
Royalty Payable 5 324
Trade receivable 12 32
Advance to supplier 23 -
M/s Yashrey Security Deposit - 207
Starfire Gems Private Limited Trade payable 4
Security deposit 6
Tata Sons Private Limited Royalty Payable 451 -
Titan Commodity Trading Limited Cash margin receivable 1,502 1,386
Interest receivable 25 10
Trade payable 112
Key management personnel Long term employee benefits 60 20
Short term employee benefits 22 16

Notes:

a) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company.
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30

30.1

30.2

303

31

Leases

Amotnts recognised in balance sheet

Particulars Note Asat A il
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(i) Right-ol-usc asscts [
Buildings 24,680 20,153
(ii) Leasc liabilities
Non-currenl 15(i1) 30,817 23,099
Current 18(i11) 4,506 3,363
35,323 26,462

(iii) Lease receivables
Non-current 7(iy 7,462 4,698
Current 11(v) 1,151 649

_ 8,613 5,347
Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss

) . As at As at
Seing Culag D 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023

(1) Depreciation and amortisation expense
Buildings 26 4676 2,570
(i1} Interest expense (included in finance cost) 25 3,089 1,640
(iiiy Interest income on sub-lease (included in other income) 22 692 553
(iv) 'xpense relaling to short-lerm leases 25 192 183
(v) IExpense relating to variable lease payments 2] 23 17

(2) Short-term lease has been accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116 - lease and accordingly recognized as expenses in the consolidated statement of profit and

loss.
(b) The total cash outflow net of sublease receipts for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounts to Rs.6,731 lakhs. (Previous year : Rs.3,005 Lakhs)

Maturity Analysis of Lease Payments

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Upto 1 year 5,472 4,201
1 to 2 years 5,236 3,956
2 to 3 years 5,087 3,704
3 to 4 years 4,550 3,516
4 to 5 years 3,544 2,934
Above 5 years 14,022 10,755
Total 37,911 29,066

Employee benefit obligations

a) Defined contribution plan
The contributions recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the vearare as under:

Particul Asat AS al
arficuiars 31 March 2024 31 Mureh 2023

397 320

Employee provident fund
1 il

Employee state insurance

The plan typically exposes the company to actuarial risk such as interest risk and salary risk.

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (non-funded)
Under the defined benefit plan, the company provides for a lumpsum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or termination of employment based on the last drawn

salary and years of employment with the company.

Interest nsk A movement in the bond interest rate will impaet the plan Iinbfli'ty.
Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of}
plan participants, as such an increase in the salary of the plan participants and vice-versa

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars g At
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate (p.a.) 7.20% 7.30%

Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

- Corporate 10.95% 10.78%

- Non-corporate 10.60% 9.76%

- Manufacturing 11.09% 9.35%

Attrition rate

- Corporate 22.33% 26.67%

- Non-corporate 22.67% 24.00%
4.00% 6.67%

- Manufacturing

- The employees of the Company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years.
- The mortality rates considered are as per the published rates in the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ult table.
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Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars

For the year ended 31 March 2024

Discount rate

Escalation rate

Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied

1,296
1,379

1,378
1,297

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars
Discount rate Escalation rate
Defined benefit obligation when a plus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 854 89;{
Defined benefit obligation when a minus 50 bps for respective rates is applied 896 857
i As at As at
Maturityprofiic 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expected benefits for year 1 199 181
Expected benefits for year 2 185 161
Expected benefits for year 3 185 139
Expected benefits for year 4 183 127
Expected benefits for year 5 164 109
Expected benefits in next 3 vears and above 1,483 637
Camyg 1s of defined benefit costs recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss are as follows:
Particulars L0 Anat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 202 140
[nterest on net defined benefit liability 57 34
Total expense charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss 259 174
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
Particulars T e
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions 66 (24)
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions 49 0
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes 261 131
376 107

Remeasurements during the year

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. The
remeasurement of the net defined liability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from Lhe entity’s|

obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined benefit liability

Current service cost

Interest on defined benefit obligations

Amount recognised outside the consolidated statement of profit and loss account
- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions

- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumptions

- Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefit liability

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

874 629
202 141
57 34
66 24)

49 -
261 131
(173) (37)
1,336 874
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31

32

33

34

Employee benefit obligations (continued)

¢) Compensated absences
This provision covers the Company's liability for eamned leave

Provision as at 31 March 2024 amounting to Rs. 253 lakhs (2023: Rs, 130 lakhs) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer the
settlement for atleast twelve months after the reporting date.

Similar assumptions have been made as per the defined benefit plan

The service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Salaries, wages and bonus' line item in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of
the net liability is included in other comprehensive income. The amount included in the consolidated balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its
compensated absences is as follows:

As at As at

Banticulany 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Compensated absences
Current 586 389
586 389

Operating segment

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM') evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources based on analysis of various performance indicators by,
industry clgsses. The Managing Director have been identified as the CODM.Accordingly, segment information has been presented for industry classes. The operating|
segment has been identified to be "Jewellery" as the CODM reviews business performance at an overall Company level as one segment

Right to recover returned goods and Liability for sales return

The Company has a return policy whereby customers can return the jewellery purchased by them within a period of 15 days. Therefore based o the expected sales return the
company creales a liability for sales return on the sale value and corresponding right to recover returned goods towards cost of sales for such sales return in the financial
statement for the year ended 31 March 2024,

Nature As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Liability for sales return
Opening balance 512 382
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (512) (382)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 758 512
Closing balance 758 512
Right to recover returned goods
Opening talance 339 264
Less: Provision reversed towards sales returns (339) (264)
Add: Provision towards sales return created 496 339)
Closing balance 496 339
Commercial paper
The following tables set forth, for the period indicated, details of commercial paper:
31 March 2024
Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months 4-6 Months
Face value - - -
Carrving value = -
31 March 2023
Maturities 0-1 Month 2-3 Months 4-6 Months|
Face value - 21,500 g
Carrving value - (21.262)
The following tables set forth, ratings assigned by credit rating agency at 31 March 2024
Instrument ICRA CRISIL
CRISIL AA+/Stable
oy +
Commercia! paper ICRA [A1+] (Reaffirmed) (Reaffirmed)

(b) Movement of Commercial Paper :

Particulars For the vear ended 31 March 2024 For the year ended 31 March 2023
Opening Balance 21,262 14,864
Additions during the year 61,930 93,426
Repa during the vear 83,192 87,028
Closing balance - 21,262

Note : As on 31 March 2024, the Company has repaid all it's commercial paper, accordingly the Company believe SEBI (LODR) is not applicable for the Company
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35

(a)

(b)

(c)

(C)]

(i)

Contingent jiabilities and commitments

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

- Guarantees excluding financial guarantees - =
- Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:

Sales tax matters (refer note (i) below) - 677
- Other money for which the Company is contingently liable - -

The Supreme court of India in the month of February 2019 had passed a judgement relating to definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act,1952. However, considering
that there are numerous interpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of reliable measurement of the provision for the earlier periods, the Company has
made a provision for provident fund contribution based on it's interpretation of the said judgement. The Company will evaluate its position and update its provision, if]
required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The Company does not expect any material impact of the same.

During the previous year, the Company received Show Cause Notice (‘SCN’) dated 28 March 2022, from the office of the Directorate of Enforcement, Government of India
(‘DOE’) alleging that the Company received Foreign Direct Investment (‘FDI") during the year(s) 2011 to 2014 in lieu of issue of shares to overseas investor, which was
utilised in Single Brand Retail Trading activities without prior approval from the RBIL The show-cause notice pertained to an alleged violation of FEMA Rules as Foreign
Direct Investment in single-brand retail was not permitted under automatic route in above stated periods.

. The Company, based upon the management briefing, approached a former Chief Justice of India who had opined that CaratLane was not in violation of the FEMA rules as al

the relevant period, it was only engaged in B2B sales and was not in retail trade. Furthermore, during the year, the Company filed detailed reply to the DOE witk clarification
vide their letter dated October 28, 2022, Thereafter the Company also preferred a Writ Petition bearing No. 30893 of 2022 (“Writ Petition”), filed before the Hon’ble High
Court of Judicature at Madras (‘Hon’ble Court”), challenging the SCN and proceedings before DOE. The same was heard by the Hor’ble Court on November 21, 2022, and
DOE was directed to file a counter-affidavit as its response, within 4 weeks. However, as on date, no response has been filed by DOE and the time period fer filing the same
has also lapsed. The listing of the matter for hearing before Hon’ble Court has not been notified till date.

Based on the legal opinion received and its assessment of transactions and provisions of FEMA Rules for the years under consideration, the Management considered that no
provision is required to be carried in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 in relation to the above matter, The Management would evaluate this position)
in subsequent years, based on outcome of proceedings before the Hon’ble Court and DOE.

CENVAT demand order for Rs. 677 Lakhs was raised by the Principal Commissioner, Chennai Nungambakkam office vide Order No. 47/2022 CH.N.GST dated
28.03.2022, During the year upon hearing the proceedings were dropped by the principal commissiener vide order ro. 10/2023 CH.N.GST dated 27.12.2023 with no demand
and hence no contingency in this regard.

Note:

The above amounts are based on the notice of demand or the Assessment Orders or notification by the relevant authorities, as the case may be, and the Company 1s sontesting
these claims with the respective authorities. Outflows, if any, arising out of these claims would depend cn the outcome of the decisions of the appellate authorities and the
Company's rights for future appeals before the judiciary. No reimbursements are expected.
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36 Finsncisl instromynts
36,1 Cateporices of financial instruments

Finuncial asscls

Partheular As at 31 March 2024 As ul 31 March 2023
u. Menwured at amortised cost
- Loons to employees (Refer note 11(13)) 128 523
- Security and other deposits (Reler note 7(i) and nate 11(v)) 2,458 2.263
- Trade recetvables (Refer note 11(i)) 668 1.7
- Cosh and cash equivalents (Refer note 11(i1)) 2,195 6R1
- Other bank balances (Refer note 11(1in)} 504 178
- Lease receivables (Refer note 703 and nole 11(v)) R,603 5347
by linancial axscin 4 320y
Totul Mnancisl sty meavured af amartbed ooit 19,186 13518
19,186 EEIT
Fieimmciul lahilithes
Purliculars As a1 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
2. Measured at fuir value through profit or loss (“"FVTPL")
= Erobd oo ian 40220 20,931
Total financial linbilitics measisred at FVTPL () A 220 20,931
= Messired st smortbed oot
59,226 56,712

sits 840 362
= Trude payubles 26,214 19,555
- Lease liabihites 35,323 26,462
- Chther financial liabfrnes 1841 (Y
Totul financiul Hahilitics l'.‘ﬂ.‘lﬂ! at amrthued ot i) 124,446 104, TED

Tutal financlal Hahilities (s + b)

1,10 EERITIN

362 (i) Fair value hierarchy
This note explains thout hasis

or determination of furr values of various (inuncin] asscls and linbihties:

Parilvilars Level | Livel 2 Level 3 Toral
Finnncinl ussels and linbilities measured ot fair value - March 31, 1024

Financiul Habilisies

= Liuld foan 0,220 - - 40,220
!m !' ﬁﬂm ﬂ L AN, ;a! 3 - 40, ]}nﬂ:
Particul Level | Level 2 Lawel 3 Tutul
Financial asscts anid Hahilithes messired ut Fair value - March 31, 2023

= Giold loas 20931 - . 20,431

anmi -

ibiﬂi 1

Jotal nanciol wuets

o~

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes finucial isiruments measured using quoted prices This includes listed equaty instruments, mutual funds The fair value of el equily mstruments that are tmded 1n the stock
exchanges 15 valuad using the closing price al the reporting period The mutual funds are velued using the closing net assct volue. Gold loan which arc 1o be repaid bused on quoted price us o the date of the
repnynent The Gold foan has been valued at the closing gold rates

Level 2: The fair value of linoneinl mstruments that are not traded in on aclive market (for example: Over-th ter derivalives) is d ined using valuntion techni which maximize the use of observable duta

estmuites 17 ull significant inputs required to fair vatue on wstrument are obscrvuble, the instrument is included in level 2

und rely s little os poss
Level 3: I one ar more of the sigmlTeant inputs 15 not hased an ohscrvable market data, the instrument s inchided in level 3. This is the case of ulisted wstruments, depasits, employee loans cte

)

S

ey

~

P

(i) Valuation technlque used to determine fuir value

Specific value technigques used o vahue oancil mstruments include

- the use of quated markel prices for listed instruments

- the fur value of remaining financil i 18 d ) using ) cush flow anlysis

The irying valies of Tinuncial assels and liabilities approxmnte the fair valucs

Flnuncial risk management

The Company has 1n place a Risk manngement framewark (0 identity, evaluale busmess nsl
include market nsk, credil risk and Tliquidity risk

e Cornpany nummases the eftects of these risks by usmg derivative inancial instruments to hedg
Campany s polieres upproved by the Board of Directars, which pravide wiutten principles on Uhe u

(iiii) Fuir value of Minancial assets and financial lisbilitics that are not measured at fair value (but fuir vulue disclosures urc required)

1sk monagement stralegs

and chillenges across the Company both al corparate level as also separately for cach husiness division These risks

risk expostires. The nse of derivatine finuncial instruments and investment of excess liquidly is governed by the
of such insiruments cansistent with the Company”s
The Comprny does not esiter mio or trade financial instruments ncleding derivative financial instriments, lor specnlative purposes
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( ~ Financiul instruments (continued)

363 Credit risk
Credit nisk refors to the risk thal (he counterparty will defaull on 1ts contructul obligations resulng in financial loss to the Company. ‘The Company deals majorly with credutworthy counterpartics und obtains
sufficient collateral, where appropriute us o meaus of mitigating the tisk of finuncial loss from defaulls Credit risk is managed by the Company through approved credit nonms, establishing credit limits and
(r‘ i \ monitoring the iness of 1o which the Company pronts eredil tems in the narmal course of businuss On nccount of adoplion of Ind AS 109, the Company uses expected credit loss
model 1o assess he impanment loss Credit nsk anses principally (rom the Conipany”s reccivables (rom customers. Credit risk on liguid funds is hniied hecause the counterpartivs are banks. Refer note 11(ii) for the
ahisghosuees for trade reevivables

364 Liquidity risk
("\ The Company Inv

manages liquidity nsk by maintaining adequate res
assets and liabiliies The company expecls lo meel

surplus funds from time-lo-time m various short-term i Security of funds and liquidity shall be the pnmary considerntion wiile deciding an the type of investments The Company
, bunking thedlitics and reserve ing fucilitics, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash Mows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
other obligations from operating cash Mows nnd proceeds of maturing finuncin ossets

Liguidity risk tables
The follownig lubke hefow analyses the Company's financial lbilities into relevant maturity proupings based on their maturities for all non-derivative finnncial Tiabiliies that are net settled
Ihe tables have been drawn on an undiscounled basis based on (he earljest date on which the Company can be required (o pay

-
/

As a1 31 March 2024 As at 31 Murch 2023

Secured bank orerdrufterm loan facility, payable

D,

- amount used 35.827 35450
- umount unused 20,173 10,148
Secured gold on loan facillty, paysble
e - amount used 40,220 20,931
( _ pmnunt nnused 1780 36,644

y
Ihe Tollowmg (sbles details the Company's remaining contractual matunty for 115 nan-derivative fmoncial habiities with agrecd repayment periods The tables have been drawn on an undiscounted cash (lows of
financuul Jublitics hased on the carliest date on which the Compuny can be required Lo pay

)

Contructual maturitics of financial liabilities Less thun 3 >3 months Total
misnthy

Asmt
31 Murch 2024

D

- Secunty depostts 2 8 a0
3 - Borrewings 2718 16,714 59432
( ~Trade pavables 26214 4 26214
- Gold Toan 17260 2303 40,294
se iuhiliies 1,785 45,747 47502
. - Oy flousagial Hishelfies 2,118 1388 3403
(’ Total ponderiative (iahilitio T w7018 [EEkILH
Contractus) maturities of financial liubilitics tesshans >3 months Total
manths
Asat
( 31 March 2023
Nun-derivatlve
- Security deposits 19 3 12
~ Borrow ines 56711 5 56711
< ~Trade payables 18,643 912 19,555
~Gold loan 12,601 £330 20934
- Lease Tiahlities 815 25647 26,462
= (Wbt fimacial hubilitns. LEXT 2 [NV
( il i e Hal "-UJ'H 35234 |m7|l

‘.
sy L
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Finuncial instrumenis (continued)

36.5 Market rivk
IMe market nisks (o which the Company 1s exposed me price nsk and foreign currency Hisk

Price sk
The Company s exposed 1o Muctuntions 1 gald price (including fuctuations in foreign currency ) arising on purchuse/ sale of gold

To maage the variobility n cash flows, the Company eaters into derivative financial istrunents 10 manage the risk associated with gotd price fluctuations relating to ull the highly probable forecasied ransactions
Such denvative financial instraments ore prmarily m e noture of future commodity contracts und forward foreign exchonge commcts. The nisk management siralegy agamst gold price uctuation also mcludes
procurmg gold ort lomn basis, with o Nexthility (o [ix price of gold ol ony time during the tevor of the loan

The use of such denvative finaneral instruments is governed by the Company’s policies spproved by the Board of Direclors, which provide wrilten prineiples on the use of such wstruments consistent wth the

Company’

nsh mimagement stralegy

As the value of the derivative mstrument generally chianges in response to the value of the hedged item, the economne relationship is eslablished

The lollowing table gives details of contracts vs al the end of the reporting year:

Fair value hedges Sell future contracts:

Aversge rate  Quantity of hedge

i t i

Particolar Nuture of Hedge (Per gram) instruments (Kgs) NomlInal amount
31 Murch 2024 Foir value 6370 m nsm
31 March 2023 Fair valie 3X19 355 201,692

Fair value hedge

e Company designates derivalyve coulmets a5 hedging instrumcnts Lo mitigate the risk of change in fiir value of hedged item duc o movement in gold prices. Chimges in the fur salue of hedging wstrumznts and
edged tems thia are designnted und qualdy ns far vl hedges are recorded 1 the Statement of Profit und Loss Thercfore, there will be no impact of the fuctuntion in the price of the gold on the Company's profit
for the period

e table helow shows the position of hedgng instruments und hedged items as on the bufonce sheet date:

Av Al 3 March 2024: .

Cinmemedity price risk Currying valie of Mulurity date Impact of fair Disclosure in bulunce sheet
Tedged liem Hedping instrament valur heidpe
edped vem « fivead gald 11,577 - 3 memihe AR Iavenbines

1/ other linhilties

Hedging instrument - denvalives - (1) Uplo 6 monlhs (1) Other [inoncial &

An st 31 March 2023 -
Commuodity price risk Carrying valug of Maturiey dute Benpuct of fair Divchasuaee in balsner vheel
Hedped licm Huadying invtrumynt value hydpe
Vheslgpend ibem = finend ol naur - 2 mnpths 1 lnventories
= Olher financial ossels/ other linbilities

Uedgmg instrument - denvatives . E

Foreign currency risk management

The Compimy 1s exposed to foreipn exchange n ising through ils sales and purchases denominaled in vanous foreign currencies

(1) The sk management strategy on forcign currency exchunge Tuctuation asing on uccount of purchase/ sale of gold is vovered ubove

(1) In respect of normal purchase and sale transacuians denommuted in foreign currency, contrucls e measured at fair value through the consolidaled statement of profil and loss
The carrying amount of the Company's foreign currency denaminated monelary usscts oud monetary linbilities  the end of the reportig year ure as follows

Curruncy Liahilithes as st Assety wy b
31 Murch 2034 31 Murch 2623 31 Murch 2024 31 Morch 2023
$ 7 [ [

Ohitaziduz w 1
Anitstannding m [k s 54 ]
“Hgire soutn ewrgnaris e R 340, 0000

)

Foreign currency sensitivity nnslysis

Five Compuny 1 munly uxposed (o USI The Company's sensitivaty 10 a 1% increase and decrease in the INR sgainst the selevant forcign cumencies is presented below:

e sensitisty analysis tncludes only autstanding fresgn currency deniominated monelary iles and adjusts therr trunslation al the period end for a 1% change o foreign currency s ITiere 13 an increase i profil or
equity by Rs d lakhs where the INR strenthens 1% against the relevant currency. For n 1% weakening of the INR aguinst the relevant currency, there would be o comparable decrease in profit or cquity

i miogenents opinion, the sensiisity analysts 1 unrepresentaiive of the inherent fareign exchunge sk bocause the exposure at the end of the reporting period docs ol reflect the exposure during the yen:

Interest rute risk

and eash flows of the Company:

Interest rate nsh ~ he nish that changes in market miterest mies will lead lo changes 1n fair value ol finaneral instruments or changes in interest income. expe

e Comjny 15 subject (o varabl 1nterest rutes on some of s interest bearing Habilitics. The Compuny’s intercst rate expasure 15 wainly eelated (0 dobt obhgattons The Compuny also uses u inix of mierest rule
ncial instruments Lo manage the liguidity and find requi for its day to duy operotions like short term loans.

sei
As l 31 Murch 2024 and 31 March 2023, financiat labalities of Rs 39,226 Lakhs snd Rs 56,711 Lukhs, respectively, were subject to vanable mterest rates

Although some assets and liabilities may huve similar matunties or peniods to re-pricimg, these may not react
anid linhilities may (uctuale with chunges in markel interest rates, while intercst mtes on other types of assels may

antncous purallel shifls in the yield cus
s 0N some Lypes of

The model assumes that interest rute changes
correspondingly 1 changes in markel interest nutes. Also, the mterest ra
change with a Tag

ssumes that the chunge occurs ot the bulance sheel dale ind has ben calculated based

“The risk estiiitis giovided mssume a parallel shifl of 100 hasis points inlerest ale vcross all yiehd curves. This calculation
nding during the period.

an risk exposties putstondiag s at that date. The period end halances are wot necessanly representative of the averuge debl outs

is a increuse/decrense of 592 lakhs in finance cost

Fora {% 1 zreast se i inlerest e,
371 dumated amount of'centracts remaramg to be executed on capitul account and ol provided for is Rs 938 lakhs (Previous year: Rs 1,048 lukhis)

un
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clal stutements for the yean ended 31 March 2024

|1 ansarirans b I i, amsiivs edlieraise Jdatod)

28 Assets aad hatilities held for sele

See accounting pelicy m Note 3(v)
Company Tuns is silver busimess under the brand name “Shaya® Revenue or the yveur ended 31 March 2024 is Rs 4,970 Lakhs and EBITDA for the year ended 31 March 2024 is Rs (1,170} Lakhs

The Company 1 the Board meetmg held an 26 March 2024 recerved an m-prnciple approval from lhe Board of Direclors is looking for & suitable buyer to sell ils Shayn husiness Management expects the transaction to be highly probable witlm
the next linaneial yer

A. Avsets and liabilitics of dispusal group held for sale

As al 31 March 2024, he disposal group was staled at lower of cost or fair value less cost Lo sell and comprised the followng ussets and habilitics

Partieular Ammrng
Assels @
Propetty, plant and Equipment 166
Inventones 1472 .
Irade recervables 98
|ulvance In Supplier 70
Aty held fur saie 1 Wi,
[ e
Lisbilitjes :
Teauhe bl 120
_IJ.«I»JInI.t_\ bl fuir ale 120

B. Cumulatis ¢ income or expenses included in OCIT
There are na cumulative mcome or expenses included i OC] relating to the disposal group

. Memmnement uf Falr Vilues

The Lr value of sssets and linbilites held For sale hus heen catergonsed as Level 3 fuir value

39 The Group has incurporated a subsidiary namely SwedioC Inc on 11 February 2021 In (he current financial year Carotlone made un investment of $ 1,50,000 in SiudioC
Itie subsidiary compuny which is included in consohdation and the Companys holdings therem 1s us under

z Holding, % Hulding ¥s Haliing %% Hulding ¥
Mume nl 23
e il the sutnidisry Conniry of Incorparation 31 March 24 31 Mapch 2 31 Mage 31 March 13
Stodil” Ing Uinttad Sumies. (1529 e s s

Additionn] information pursuant to paru 2 of general Instructions for the prepuration of Consolidated Financial Statcments:

Additional inforinition us required by Parugraph 2 of the Generl for P’reparation of Consolidated Financial 8 Lo Schedule Ol to the 2013 Act
. As at 31 March 224 Axat 31 March 2623
Net assets, i e.. (olal assels minus fotal linbilities Comalidated profil sfier tay Net assels, i.e., lolal assels mlnus tutal C idated profit
Name af the Entity As s %ol Avn % of
= . dluted -
Adw W umotiiied mit Amsuni consnlidated Amount wnnvalidnted et Amount Aiw S el commiideied Amouni
el prefit
nrnfit surets
Purent : Carallane Trading Privote 134% 15,179 128% 10,077] 116% 22,061 125% 10,224
Limited
Subsidinn: StudioC Ine -51% (5,030) -28% LTy -15% (2,797 -24% [EELEHY
Ad arsme ot of -3% (308) -1% 1394 -1% (262)) e 2
1001 2.841 100%. 7859 100% 19,002 100 L]
At 30 March 2024 Ay 3t 31 Murch 2033
Shire In siher cumprehemsive inomme Tuotsl comprehensive inome Share In other comprehemiive Inenme Total comprehenive ine
As % of
As % af total
Name of the Fotii soli
e e EiptAY As % of consllduted other ather b As % of total ather
, Amount . Amaunt other Amount q Amemnt
comprehenshie income comprehensive . comprehenslve incame
comprehensive
income <
income
Parent : Curitlane Tradmg Pnvate 4% 1281 130% 43% 80 127%
Lnmted 9,796 [[IAED
Subsidiuny StudioC Ine 0% . -29% (2,179 1 sy -26% (L0
Adyustent arisig out of eonsohdition 16% (55) 1% (v4] . - Wh 121
1001% 336} 100% 7.523 (LS {1RS L (]

39 Capitul manugement
e Company's poliy o mnintain a siable aud strong capial strueture with i Focus on total cquity 50 s (o muintuin insestors, eroditors and merkel confidence and 1o sustoln fulure development und prowh of ts business. I orde o mainin the
captal struetnre, the Compans. momlors the relum on capital, as well as level of drvidends to equily sharetiolders. The Comany aims 1o inannge its capital clliciency 50 as to sufegtord it abiliy (o continue s 2 going concern and lo optimize
returns 1o all s strelolders. ior the purpase of the Compuny’s capital management, cupital includes yssued capital ond all olher equity reserves and debl is included us n pact of borrowings and gold oan
Av st Avml
Part
et g 31 Macch 2024 31 Maich 7023
Tatal deht * .22 %712
Totnl equity 9.841 19,002
Debl Lo cauity ratio 602 208
* Total debl meludes only borrowing - Gold on loan and lease hahilitics hes not heen consitered for he purpose of ubove
4t Other stutuiory information :

(1)The Group does not have any Benami property or any proceeding which 15 pending agunst the Company for holding any Benomi property
(1) The Group do nol have any tramestions with compan
(1) The Giraup do not have iy eliats or salisfiction which is yel ta be registered with Registrar of Compani
(i) The Group has not tradied ar 1vested in erypto currency or virfuul currency during the fuancial venr

Jv, The Czaugs not classified as willful Jefaudier

(¥1) e Ciroup doesi't have any tronsaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts Ihat hns been surrendered or disclosed us income during the yeur in the (X nssessnents under the Income Tux Act, 1951 such as search or survey

heyond the statutory period

e with

(vin) No funds have been advaneed or Jouned or invested (cither from b Tunds or shere preinium or any other sources or hind o funds) by the Group to or in any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign cnlines (*Intermedi:
the understanding, whether recorded i writing or otherwase, that the lsfertrjediary shall, directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persotis o entities dentified in any manner whatsoever by ur on hehalf of the Group (“Ullimale Beneficiories™)
or provide any puarantee, secutity i thie like on bekall of the Ultimsts Themefecuaries,

(v} Mo funds have been pocctvend by the Croup Tom any personds) of enfiti{ish, meluding Jorcign eulities (“Funding Perties™), with the understunding, whether rocerded m wriling b atlséewise, thal e Group shall, directly or indirecily, lend or
et o olher persons o grtibies sdhveibilied it wser whalseever by o on bhalf of he Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficianes™) or provide any guarantue, scurily or the fike on chalf of the Ulimate Benelivanics

(i) The Gronp has ol resalued its property, planl und equipment (including right fo use nsset) or inlangible ussets or bolh during the current or previous year
(3) The Giroup has comphed ath the mmnber of Tuyers prescnbed under the Compimics Act, 2013
(1) The Group hus nol enlered into any schetne of urrangement which has un accounting impact in the current or previous finunciol year

As per our report of even dule atlached

for BSR & Cu LLP for and on behall of the Bourd of Directors of
Charicyal Aceountants CARATLANE TRADING PRIVATE LIMITED
ngher. [G1248W/ W-100022 {CIN: 1J52393TN2007P [CO64RI0)

) Ashok Humar Senthalin

Avnish Apand

Firm regustratio

Afanaging Director Dlirvetar
DIN. 10359814 DIN 03259683
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